Haringey Council

Special Corporate Committee

TUESDAY, 20TH MARCH, 2012 at 19.00 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Amin, Gorrie, Griffith, Jenks, Khan, McNamara, Meehan,
Watson, Whyte and Williams

AGENDA

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE(IF ANY)
2. URGENT BUSINESS

The Chair will consider the admission of any late report in relation to the item shown
on the agenda. Please note that under the Council’s Constitution — Part 4 Section B
paragraph 17 — this being a special meeting of the Corporate Committee no other
business shall be considered.

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.



4, DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/PRESENTATIONS/QUESTIONS

To consider any requests received in accordance with Part 4, section B, paragraph 29
of the Council’s constitution.

5. WORKPLACE LEARNING /EXPERIENCE POLICY (PAGES 1 -14)

The Committee to consider and agree a policy for handling workplace
learning/experience arrangements.

6. THE ANNUAL INTERNAL AUDIT PLAN AND INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY
(PAGES 15 - 42)

The Committee will be asked to agree the Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy for
2012/13.

7. PAY POLICY STATEMENT (PAGES 43 - 70)

The Committee will be asked to approve and recommend to full Council a pay policy
statement in line with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

8. EXEMPT ITEMS OF BUSINESS

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for consideration of item 9 as
it contains exempt information as defined in Section 100a of the Local Government
Act 1972 (as amended by Section 12A of the Local Government Act 1985): paras 1 &
2 and 3: namely information relating to any individual, and information likely to reveal
the identity of an individual Also Information relating to the financial or business affairs
of any particular person (including the authority holding that information)

9. PERFORMANCE APPRAISAL SCHEME FOR CHIEF OFFICERS AND SENIOR

MANAGERS (PAGES 71 - 74)

To report on the application of the performance appraisal scheme for Senior
Managers and Chief Officers.

David McNulty Ayshe Simsek X2929

Head of Local Democracy Principal Committee Coordinator
and Member Services Level 5

Level 5 River Park House

River Park House 225 High Road

225 High Road Wood Green

Wood Green London N22 8HQ



London N22 8HQ
Tel: 020 8489 2929
Email: ayshe.simsek@haringey.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 Agenda ltem 5

Haringey
i Corporate Committee on | ltem

Reportfor: 1 50 March 2012 Number:
Title: Workplace Learning/ Experience Policy

Stuart Young, Assistant Chief Executive
Report
Authorised by: 3&44{ .)/
Lead Officer: Steve Davies, Head of Human Resources

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for Key/ Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

To ask the committee to agree a policy for handling workplace learning/
experience arrangements.

2. Cabinet Member introduction
Not applicable
3. Recommendations
To agree the attached policy for workplace leaming/ experience opportunities.
4. Other options considered
4.1 The attached policy outlines the different types of workplace leaming/ experience

opportunities and the appropriate pay and conditions that are applicable to the
different arrangements.

Page 1 of 11



Page 2

Haringey

4.2

Given that the council is a public body there is no scope to avoid statutory
employment regulations including national minimum wage regulations in relation
to pay. Therefore we need to have a policy for pay and conditions for
apprenticeships and internships. That policy needs to enable each case to be
considered on its merits to determine whether an employment relationship exists.
Where one does the relevant legislation/policy should apply.

5. Outline Policy Considerations

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

Youth unemployment is at record levels and in the borough it is at 11.7%
compared to a London average of 8.1%. The council like many large employers
have strived to provide a number of workplace learing/ experience opportunities
for young people including work experience, apprenticeships and more recently
internships. It is important that there is clarity over what these different
arrangements are and what pay and conditions, if any, should apply to these
different workers.

There are 3 different types of workplace learning/ experience arrangements that
the council support. These are work experience, apprenticeships and
internships. Whilst the council has supported apprenticeships in the recent past,
it should be noted that at present the council do not operate a scheme for
apprentices.

The first task will be for the Head of HR to determine whether the person is a
‘worker’ or a volunteer. Under the National Minimum Wage Act (NMW) 1998
someone should be classified as a ‘worker’ who has a contract of employment or
other contract that requires the individual to carry out work or services for
another party. Volunteering can take many forms by it does not usually invoive
full time or close to full time working or doing specific duties. Also, if they are
shadowing, observing or following then they are not likely to be classified as a
worker. And volunteers are under no obligation to perform work or carry out your
instructions. Interns may be classified as ‘workers’ or volunteers depending on
the nature and type of working arrangement but the Head of HR will assess each
case and utilise the HMRC guidance and employment status classification tool
determining the status of the intern in each case. .

Under the NMW Act all ‘workers’ must be paid at least the minimum wage

(currently £6.08 per hour for 21 and over years of age, £4.98 per hour for 18-20

yrs}), unless they are:

o People doing a government accredited apprenticeship or work based training

e Students doing a first degree or teacher training who work as part of their
course

o Volunteer workers for a charity, voluntary organisation or statutory body

Page 2 of 11



Page 3

Haringey
2.5 Work experience placements tend to last for a few weeks only and usually apply
to Year 10 school students. Therefore no payment is necessary.

9.6 However, both apprenticeships and internships tend to be more formalised
arrangements and tend to last 6 — 12 months and involve undertaking a
programme of work or project. Therefore given the council’s London Living
Wage policy it is proposed to pay these groups the London Living Wage rate
{currently £8.30 per hour) for the hours that they work. This will apply as
appropriate following the Head of HR’s assessment.

5.7 The attached policy outlines in more detail the different types of workplace
learning/ experience opportunities that there are and the appropriate pay and
conditions that are applicable to the different arrangements.

6. Comments of the Chief Finance Officer and financial implications

6.1 The Chief Financial Officer is content that the policy is written in such a way as to
ensure that the potential costs and other financial implications of any
appointment will be considered and addressed before any agreement to enter
into any of these arrangements is made.

7. Head of Legal Services and legal implications
7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on this report.

7.2 Section 112 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides that the Council may
appoint staff on such reasonable terms and conditions of employment as the
authority might determine.

7.3 Under section 1 of the National Minimum Wages Act 1898 a person who qualifies
for the national minimum wage shall be remunerated by his employer in respect of
his work in any reference pay period at a rate which is not less that the national
minimum wage. A person qualifies for the national minimum wage if he is an
individual who is (a) a worker (b) is working, or ordinarily works in the UK, under his
contract; and (c) has ceased to be of compulsory school age. The national
minimum wage shall be such single hourly rate as the Secretary of State may from
time to time prescribe. The current rates are set out in paragraph 5.4 of the report.
The Gouncil has adopted the London Living Wage Policy and therefore any rate
applicable would be by reference to that policy. There are special rates which
apply in relation to apprentices.

7.4 Section 3 of the Act under the heading ' Exclusion of, and modifications for,
certain classes of persons' states that the section applies to persons who have not
attained the age of 26 and under section 1A for those who have attained the age of
26 who are

Page 3 of 11



Page 4

Haringey

(a) within the first six months after the commencement of their employment with an
employer by whom they have not previously been employed;

(b) participating in a scheme under which sheiter is provided in return for work

(c) participating in a scheme designed to provide training, work experience or
temporary work;

(d) participating in a scheme to assist in the seeking or obtaining of work

(e) [undertaking] a course of higher education requiring attendance for a period of
work experience

(f) undertaking a course of further education requiring attendance for a period of
work experience

7.5 Section 3(2) provides that the Secretary of State may make regulations to whom
the section applies
(a) preventing them being persons who qualify for the national minimum wage; or
(b) prescribing an hourly rate for the national minimum wage other than the single
hourly rate for the time being prescribed in section 1(3).

7.6 Section 44 of the Act under the heading 'Exclusions’ relates to Volunteers and
states a worker employed by a charity, a voluntary organisation, an associate fund
raising body or a statutory body does not qualify for the national minimum wage in
respect of that employment if he receives, and under the terms of his employment
(apart from the Act) is entitled to
(a) no monetary payments of any description, or no monetary payments except in
respect of expenses
(i) actually incurred in the performance of his duties, or
(i) reasonably estimated as likely to be or to have been so incurred, and
(b) no benefits in kind of any description or no benefits in kind other than the
provision of some or all of his subsistence or of such accommodation as is
reasonable in the circumstances of his employment.

7.7 An employee for the purposes of the Act means an individual who has entered into
or works under a contract of employment. A contract of employment means a
contract of service or an apprenticeship. A worker means an individual who has
entered into or works under a contract (a) a contract of employment or (b) any
other contract whereby the individual undertakes to do or perform any work or
services for another party to the contract whose status is not by virtue of the
contract that of a client or customer of any profession or business undertaking
carried on by the individual.

7.8 Regulation 3 of the National Minimum Wage Act Regulations 1999 relates to time
paid work and states that time work is work that is paid under a workers contract
by reference to the time which a worker works and is not salaried hours work i.e.
paid by reference to an annual salary. Unmeasured work is where there are no
specified hours and the worker is required to work when needed or when work is
available.

Page 4 of 11



Page 5

Haringey
7.9 Whether an intern is a worker and entitled to be paid the national minimum wage is
fact specific. Short informal arrangements, for example, involving work shadowing,
observing and/or following are likely to be excluded however if there are fixed
duties which are to be performed personally in a particular way by the individual

the greater the likelihood is that he or she is a worker and entitled to be paid the
national minimum.

7.10 The report in order to address the very fact specific situations which are likely to
arise and to ensure compliance with the relevant legislation states, on page 5, that
any proposed workplace learning/experience opportunities need to be cleared and
authorised by the Head of HR. All and any appointments should be made in
accordance with the relevant HR policies and procedures relating to recruitment.

7.11 Failure to pay the national minimum wage where it should be paid is an offence
and can lead to enforcement action and litigation against the employer.

7.12 Members must also have due regard to the public sector equal duty when
considering any policy. An outline of the duty is attached at Appendix C to the
report. Members attention is also drawn to the equalities comments at section 8 of

the report

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 The current age profile in the council (at June 11} shows only 1.9% of staff are
under 25 (down from 3.8% in 2009/10), this equates to only 72 staff from a total of
3,866. Inthe borough profile, 11% of residents are in the same age group.

8.2 During the same period, youth unemployment in the borough was 11.7% (higher
than the London average rate of 8.1%) The council like many large employers have
strived to provide a number of workplace learning/ experience opportunities for
young people inciuding work experience, apprenticeships and more recently
internships.

8.3 Therefore it important for the council to have a policy on how these different
workers should be treated in terms of their pay and conditions.

8.4 An equalities impact assessment screening tool form is attached at Appendix B.

9. Use of Appendices
Appendix A - Workplace Leaming/ Experience Policy

Appendix B - Workplace Learning/ Experience Policy Equalities Impact
Assessment Screening Tool Form

Page 5 of 11



Page 6

Haringey
Appendix C — Public sector equal duty

10. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

No documents that require to be listed were used in the preparation of this report.

Page 6 of 11



Page 7

Appendix A
Workplace Learning/ Experience Policy

Introduction & Scope

Workplace learning/ experience opportunities provide young people with a means of
gaining valuable skills and experience within a real workplace environment. As such they
can act as a ‘talent pipeline’ into the workplace.

This policy outlines the types of workplace leaming/ experience arrangements that the
council support and pay and conditions that are applicable to these types of
arrangements. Any proposed workplace learning/ experience opportunities need to be
cleared and authorised by the Head of HR to ensure the arrangements comply with
relevant legislative provisions and the council’s policies and procedures

Each case will be assessed on its merits. The first task will be for the Head of HR to
determine whether the person is a ‘worker’ or a volunteer. Workers will be paid for their
work, volunteers do not get paid. Interns may be classified as ‘workers’ or volunteers
depending on the nature and type of working arrangement but the Head of HR will assess
each case and utilise the HMRC guidance and employment status classification tool
determining the status of the intern in each case.

Volunteers (where a worker is free to come and go and usually does not constitute full
time work) are not covered within the scope of this policy.

This policy does not address in detail the administrative or practical arrangements for
setting up the different workplace learning/ experience options which will be determined
onh a case by case basis by HR with the appropriate service manager, however issues that
need to be considered include whether there is a properly funded post in the structure,
how long will the job be in place, what hours will the postholder work, what work will be
undertaken including an outline programme, what will be the management and monitoring
arrangements for this work.

Types of Workplace learning/ experience opportunities

Work Experience — placements tend to last for a few weeks and primarily involve work
shadowing and the completion of small tasks that do not form a core part of the council’s
work. These placements usually apply to Year 10 school students, but not always.

Apprenticeships - a formalised programme for young people linking practical work
experience with a nationally recognised training qualification. Typically lasting up to 12
months working up to 4 full days a week with additional time off (usually 1 day a week) for
training but the costs of training are partly supported by grants.

Internships — provide work experience opportunities for young people lasting a number

of months, usually 3 - 12 months, work set hours and close to full time, complete
specified work to goals/ deadlines, and make a valuable contribution to the organisation.

Page 7 of 11



Page 8

What type of work is suitable

Work Experience ~ any basic level tasks in the workplace that expose the young person
in a limited way to the types of work typical of the service within which they are working.
Shadowing another officer in their day to day work is also a typical means of exposing
young people to the type of work they may have to do in the workplace - this will tend to
suit more physical/ practical outside visit types of work.

Apprenticeships - the national qualifications that support various workplace
apprenticeships cover numerous types of jobs from accountancy and business
administration to social care, gardening - and many more, but in terms of the types of
roles that will be suitable to apprenticeships these will typically be entry level, lower
graded roles within these types of professions.

Internships ~ these are suited to roles where a specific piece of work or project is
required. Internships are typically offered to university graduates. Types of work that are
suitable are often desk based research, supporting policy or professional type roles in
formulating policy, organising meetings/ events, general research, etc.

Approval of these workplace learning/ experience opportunities

Any proposed workplace learning/ experience opportunities need to be cleared and
authorised by the Head of HR to ensure the arrangements comply with relevant legislative
provisions and the council’s policies and procedures. The first consideration will be in
relation to whether there is a properly funded post within the structure. Any posts must
be contained within the budgetary provision for the service. Where different funding
arrangements are required, e.g. for political groups these will be identified and detailed
before authorisation. It is also important that workplace learning/ experience
opportunities are not created at the expense of existing employees, and that
apprenticeships are created with a view to providing a real opportunity for employment
within the council at the end.

In addition to the above points the Head of HR wil} also have regard to a number of other
practical issues being resolved with the service manager including how long will the job
be in place, what hours will the postholder work, what work will be undertaken including
an outline programme, what will be the management and monitoring arrangements for
this work. The specific administrative arrangements are not dealt with in detail within this
policy but will be considered on a case by case basis by HR with the appropriate service
manager for the different workplace learning/ experience options.

Pay and conditions arrangements
Work experience - given the nature and type of arrangement there is no expectation of

payment or reimbursement needed. However, in certain cases e.g. if the student is older
it may be reasonable to reimburse travelling expenses.

Page 8 of 11



Page 9

Apprenticeships — given the council’s London Living Wage policy it is proposed to pay
apprentices the London Living Wage rate (currently £8.30 per hour for workers aged 18
years or over, and £5.10 below this age) for hours worked, with no payment for any
training hours. Entitlement to payment will apply to any apprenticeship lasting longer
than 4 weeks.

Internships — given the council’s London Living Wage policy it is proposed to pay interns
the London Living Wage rate (currently £8.30 per hour for workers aged 18 years or over)
for hours worked. Entitlement to payment will apply to any internship lasting longer than
4 weeks.

Page 9 of 11



Page 10

LL Jo 0l ebed

aB.e] AUBLL O I2UN0D By 9% | 8 JO ebeaAe uopuo & o} pasedwiod

synsal yoedw

0%/° L L ¥e Si 3 yBnoioq ay) ul pue s|9As| pJodal e s) Juswhodwaun YinoA soA | easod e pinos seinsesw Jenoiued Bupey Ag 'Q
*Siy} ayebijw o} ¢sainseaw Jenoiued bupie; Ag paonpal 8q
aye] |Im noA uonoe Jeym uejdxs aseo|d paynusp! st Joedwi esieape §| | V/N U pino2 ‘1oedw| asIaApe UR aq |[IM 10 S| 958U} § l
Juoneuuojul
alow pasu noA op 10 ¢uoniedidde Bujuue|d
Auswdoasp Jolewuonoungaasioid/Asod
Jeinojped ayy o1 uoie|el
Ul seiioud pue sanss) ‘seocusuadxe ‘spseu
1usIsyIp aaey [Im 10 aaey sdnolb uaiaiip
*9saY} Jasus 0] el 12yl (sdnoub jueAsias Yum UOIIBHNSUCD WO}
1M nOA uonoe Jeym uieidxa asea|d payiuspl a1e Spaau Juatayip §i ON Buipnjoul) aouspIAS IO UCIEIIPUI AUB 3J8Y] S| e
£sdnoub sailifenbe Aue uaamiaq suonea. 1O
$UOIIBIUSLIO [BNXSS ‘X&s ‘JoI9q 40 uoiByal ‘eoe)
‘Auwsrew pue Asueubeud ‘diysisuped a0 pue
abeluew quawubissess Japushb ‘Augesip ‘abe
s0l1s1el0rIEYD palosloid saijjenbe Asy eyl Jo
Aue U0 10BdUWI| 9SISAPE UB 9ABY INC PRLLIED S
H Aem syl o uoneoidde Buluuejdauswidojanap
Jolew/Buninionasal yeis/uonouny
ON /1osloid/Aaod pasodoud ayy pinon G
vib3 (I} & Bunepspun 1ON
10} ,uoneue|dxe pajejsp e apiroid eses(d Aiessaoau jou S| y|bg (N} B
uoljeiapIsuoD Jeye Ing S A buusmsue j) “1amsue InoA ule|dxe ases|d ON | SeA suonssny Bulusalog o] esuodsey
¢loc UdleN 6 9led 4
¢.1€ 6818 020 "HH Jo peeH ‘seireq eAelg  ("ou suoyd ‘[iews ‘sf}} qo! ‘aweu) s|ie}op 10BIIO0D JOOIO pea €
"sjuswabuele Jusiaylp oy} o3 sigedijdde ase yey; suopuod pue Aed areudoidde sy} pue ale atsy) 12y} seiiunpoddo
aousuedxe /Buiuies| soeidyiom Jo sedAl uaielip syl ssulpho Aojod ey “syuswebuele aousuadxe /Builies| eoe|diom
Bupuey Jo} yiomawelss e sapinoad Aojjod sy (sewooino pesodoid pue SWIe Uletl 9pNidul) :9A0qe 8y} §O AlRWWNS jaug -2
Adljod @ousuadx] /Buiutes aoejdyiops uonesdde Huiuueidquswdojeasp sofewuonounynosioid/Aonod ay) Jo sweN ‘1

|00 | Bulusaidg (yjb3) sjuswssassy joedu sanijenb]




Page 11

Ll Jo L] ebed

c¢l0c yoley 6 ajed
dHiJopesy  :uoneubiseq
SalAB(] 9A9]S BWEeN
SOINB( OAS1S T 4o peubig

‘anssi siy} 0} buiejes spodal uenbasqgns jje Ul spuswWwod sepifenbg ayy w papnow 8q 1 SNN uoneuejdxe siy] gN,

Aonod sIy) yum suou ale alayl yoiym Jo
s1oeduw eanebeu ejebiyw o1 psufisep si b3 syl pue sujauaq [Buollippe
Aue Bujig 1ou pinoo yib3 |} e Bupjepspun aiojeiay) pue 1oedw) salisod

renualod e apiacad Jim Aonod e yons siy) jo sssiprebsy yib3 iny e
ayepapun 0} 9|qISea) 10U S| |l S10J0I0UL SISNIOM YoNs OU ale sisy) juasaid
W suwisiul pue seonuaadde ‘eousuadxe yiom Buipnjoul sjuswabuele
aousueadxs /Bujuies] soejdyuom Bulpuey 1o} Jo syuswebuelie

ay} Buibeuelu Jo) yiomawel) e apiaoid 0} are Aojjod a8y} jo swie ay |

‘Jou Aym urejdxe asesid ON Bulamsue |

ON

iluessaoau
vIb3 |In} B s1 Buiuaalos siyl Jo }nsal e sy

"04 1 | o 8|yoid ybnoioq e 0} paredwos

Jussald 18 942 MOJ9q SI YoIym Sp|o JBak $2-91 10} ajoid asiopuom
s[1ouN09 au} aaoidw ospe pue JuswAojdws YinoA aacsdu ued am Jey
padoy si § s1oxIom Jo sadAy asay) Jo stuswabueie ay) Buibeuew Joj aoeid
ul Aoljod e Buaey Ag -sdiysuiayur Ajusoss siow pue sdiyseonuaidde
‘sousadxa yiom Buipnjoul sjdoad BunoA 104 seiunuoddo sousliedxe
/Buiuies) a0B|dyJOM JO JoqUUINU B SPIACID O} POALIIS saey siefojdwe

|00 | buiusaisg (y|b3) sjuswissassy 1oe

wj sanilenb3




Page 12



Page 13

EQUALITY ACT 2010 — THE PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 Public Sector Equality Duty states
(1) A public authorlty must, in.the exercise of its functions, have due regard to the need to -

(a) eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct that Is
prohibited by or under this Act;

(b) advance equality of opportunity between persans who share a relevant pratected
characteristic and persons who do not share it;

(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it. ‘

(2) - A person who is not a public authority but who exercises public functions must, in the
exercise of those functions, have due regard to the matters mentioned In subsection (1)

(3) - Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity between persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share # invoives having due
regard, in particular, to the need to -

(a) remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are connected to that characteristic;

(b) take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who do nat share it;

(c) encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to partidipate in
public life or in any other activity in which participation by such persons is
dispropottionately low.

(4) — The steps Involved In meeting the needs of disabled persons that are different from the
needs of persons who are not disabled include, in particular, steps to take account of disabled
persons’ disabllities.

(5) - Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do nct share It involves having due regard,
in patticular, to the need to —

(a) tackle prejudice, and
(b) promote understanding.

(6) — Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some persons more
favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as permitting conduct that wouid
otherwise be prohibited by or under this Act. '

(7) - The relevant protected characteristics are — age; disabllity; gender reassignment;
pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or bellef; sex; sexual orientation.

(8) — A reference to conduct that Is prohibited by or under this Act includes a reference to —

(a) a breach of an equality clause or rule;
(b) a breach of a non-discrimination rule,



Page 14



X

Page 15 Agenda ltem 6

/ -
Haringey ' ...
Corporate Committee
Report for: Iltem
20 March 2012 number
Title: Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2012/13

Report authorised

Director of Corporate Resources

by : e
S A 2‘1?5}/ >
Anne Woods, Head of Audit and Risk Management
Lead Officer: Tel: 020 8489 5973

Email: anne.woods@haringey.gov.uk

Ward(s) affected: ALL

Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 The Corporate Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the
annual internal audit plan as part of its Terms of Reference. In order to
facilitate this, a draft audit plan for 2012/13, together with the internal audit
strategy, is provided for review and approval by the Corporate Committee.

2. Cabinet Member Introduction

2.1 Not applicable

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Corporate
strateqy.

3.2 That the Corporate

Committee reviews and approves the Internal Audit

Committee reviews and approves the Annual Internal

Audit Plan for 2012/13.

Page 1 of 4



Page 16

o

X

e

‘7?

Haringey .o
4. Other options considered

4.1 Not applicable.
5. Background information

5.1 Local authorities are required by law to maintain an internal audit function.
In addition, The Accounts and Audit (Amendment) (England) Regulations
2010 reinforce the statutory requirement and re-state the need for the
Council to maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit.

5.2 Within Haringey, the Internal Audit function is comprised of Deloitte and
Touche, who undertake the majority of the internal audit work in
accordance with the contract in place, including IT and procurement audit.
The in-house corporate anti-fraud team is responsible for investigations
into allegations of financial irregularity, pro-active and reactive corporate
anti-fraud work, provision of advice on risk and controls and grant
certification work.

5.3 Appendix A contains the proposed annual audit plan for 201 2/13, which is
fully risk based and has been derived following consideration of: planned
organisational and efficiency savings; risk registers; new projects and
procurement activities reported to the Cabinet and the Cabinet
Procurement Committee; the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter; changes
to legislation; and fraud investigation work completed in 2011/12. This
approach reflects current best practice requirements for internal audit and
ensures that, over the life of the contract, the Council’s key financial and
non-financial systems and services will be appropriately reviewed
according to risk. This approach also ensures that the council operates a
fully integrated internal audit and risk management process.

5.4 Appendix A also includes the audit strategy which will be used to deliver the
Council’s internal audit plan. As part of the contract with Deloitte and
Touche, it is considered appropriate to keep members advised of the
strategy and the way in which the service will be delivered and request their
approval of it. The strategy has been drafted in accordance with the 2006
CIPFA Code of Practice and best practice guidance for public sector audit.
services.

6. Comments of the Chief Financial Officer and Financial Implications

6.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from this report. The work
which will be completed by Deloitte and Touche to undertake the annual
audit plan in 2012/13 is part of the three year contract which was awarded,
in compliance with EU regulations, from 1 April 2012. The costs of this
contract are contained and managed within the Audit and Risk
Management revenue budgets which are monitored on a monthly basis.

Page 2 of 4



Page 17

¥

*

//r

Haringey o

6.2 The audit plan reflects current best practice requirements for internal audit
and ensures that, over the life of the contract, the Council’s key financial
and non-financial systems and services will be appropriately reviewed

according to risk. This approach also ensures that the council operates a
fully integrated internal audit and risk management process.

6.3 The corporate anti-fraud team is responsible for investigations into

allegations of financial irregularity, pro-active anti-fraud work, provision of

advice on risk and controls and'grant certification work. This is on top of the
planned work set out in Appendix A.

7. Legal Implications

7.1 The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this
report, and in noting that both the audit plan and the audit strategy have
been drafted in accordance with industry best practice guidance, advises
that there are no direct legal implications arising out of the report.

7.2. The Head of Legal Services also confirms that the Corporate Committee
has the delegated power and responsibility, under its Constitutional terms
of reference, to implement the recommendations contained in the report.

8. Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

8.1 This report deals with how risks to service delivery are managed across all
areas of the council, which have an impact on various parts of the
community. Improvements in managing risks and controls will therefore
improve services the Council provides to all sections of the community.

9. Head of Procurement Comments
9.1 Not applicable.

10.Policy Implications

10.1 There are no direct implications for the Council’s existing policies,
priorities and strategies. However, reducing the opportunity for fraud to

take place in the first place, and taking appropriate action to detect and

investigate identified fraud will assist the Council to use its available
resources more effectively.

11.Use of Appendices

11.1 Appendix A ~ Annual Internal Audit Plan and Strategy 2012/13

Page 3 of 4



Page 18

X

>t
Haringey !
12.The Annual Audit Plan 2012/13

12.1The proposed annual internal audit plan for 2012/13 is attached as
Appendix A to this report. It gives outline details of the planned audit work
on the key financial and other systems of the Council. The detailed scope
for each project will be agreed with the client for the work at the planning
stage of the audit. Indicative timings for the projects have also been
agreed, wherever possible, with the nominated clients to take account of
any cyclical or other work pressures, although these may be subject to
change during the course of the year.

12.2 The proposed projects have been discussed with directors and their
management teams and will be subject to further discussions with the
nominated client for each audit as part of the detailed planning process. All
completed projects are subject to a formal follow up review process and
the results of the follow up reviews will continue to be reported for
information to Members, on a quarterly basis.

12.3 We will continue to work with the Council’s external auditors, Grant
Thornton, to ensure that audit coverage is maximised and duplication is
avoided wherever possible in order to make the best use of our combined
resources. A programme of meetings has already been planned during
2012/13 to ensure that use of audit resources is effective.

12.4 Included in the audit plan (within Corporate Resources and People &
Organisation Development) are audits of key financial systems. We
consider key systems to be those which are essential to the successful
management of the Council, and where failure of the system would have a
material effect on the organisation. These key systems, including payroll,
accounts payable, accounts receivable, council tax, and housing benefits
are therefore subject to regular review. A programme of full reviews every
three years, with high level reviews in the intervening years ensures that all
key risks and controls are appropriately reviewed. This programme of work
has been agreed with both the managers responsible and the council’s
external auditors.

Page 1 of 4



Page 19

€z 40 | 9fed

‘pajusWa|dul Jou suolepuswILodal Jo/pue sbulpul Aey tesk ey Buunp paisjdwios Yiom pneJj paluapl
Aue 1o/pue MIOM JpNe pIodal [$8s$e00id/sjusuysiiqeIse/sweisAs mau epnjoul o} 8SIOAIUN lpNe 8yl ajepdn pue Mainey e
:yoeoidde Buimojjoy sy} 1dope em ‘ueld ypne jeussiul fenuue sy} 1oy abesenoo EINETHITITESEYoR o] |

'SYSU JUBLIND JO JUBWISSBSSE UB AQ pauojul ‘siseq [e0lj0A0 JesA noy B UO SWslsAs Jofew (e Jenod o1 Swie UpNY jeuisly|

Ing ‘Jesk AJone eoueLIBAOD pue j0JJUOD Ysl Jo 10adse Aiane Ypne o} Alessedsu jou S| Y sanijosigo pue senuoud sy Buinsiyoe
Ul ;ounod ey 01 Juepodul ale Yyoiym sesle asoy} Buimsinal Uo pasnoo) sueld YoM paseq sl SIaAlep HpNY [ewssiu] (,@sisAiun
IPNE, 8y)) {Iouno) ey} ssosoe 9oe(d Ul ale yolym sesseooid pue swelshs ‘sjusuysiqelss Jo SSEQRIEP B SUBIUBW }PNY [BUISIU|
awweliboid YoM pue Bujuueld upny jeuisiuj g

"e8lILIWoY ejeiodio) sy} Jo AYjiqisuodsal 8y} UIYIM OS[e Je ‘98110 HPNE 8Y} JO 8]0] 8} U0 souepinb v4dID sul
Aq palinbai se ‘suoroun; ypne oyoeds Z/61 10V USWUIBAOL) [BO0T |G| UORDSS Jopun sileye [eloueuly Jo uonessiuiwpe Jadoud
8y} Joj sjuswebue.lie Bupfew Joy sjqisuodsal sI Yoym ‘eallilio) aeiodio) s, 1louno)) sy 0} papods) S| ypne [EUIBIUI JO Miom sy |

"SJUNODJE. JO JUBWSIELS [BNUUR 8yl Yyum paysiand

S YOIym ‘JuslUsIelS SOUBUISAOY [BNUUY S jIoUno) 8y} Hoddns o} sdjay Hodad Jpne [enuue s juswebeue)y )SIY pue 1pny Jo
pesH oyl ‘sjuswsbuelte Aoualedsues) pue Aljiqeiunoode eeudoldde sey pue eoueusanob eeiodioo 0 spiepuess ybiy Buinsiyoe
SI 1l ®JBASUOLWISP 01 [1ouno sy} Builsisse i 8jos Juepoduwl Ue Sey PUB UOIOUN) 80UBINSSE Juspusdapul ue SI Ipny |euiely]

oM s JIouno) ayj Buipioddns suomawely 8oueUIBAOD PpUB [0J1U0D [euisiul ‘Justusbeuewy

Y{SU 81 JO SSBUBAROBYS By} Uo uoiuido [enuue ue epiroid o} Aljigisuodsal Aloniels e sey Juswabeuely Msiy puUR 1IpNY JO peeH
8y "AebuueH Joj sewoH pue AebulieH jo ybnolog UOPUOT 8} 4O} BOIAISS JIPNE [BUIIUI 8y} sepinoid juswebeuepy Msiy pue upny
uononposuy "L

‘lencidde
[BLwO} 40} seniwwio) eyejodio ayj o0} Jeeh eyy Buunp peuodss ase ABejens ypne [eussiul 8yl Jo/pue uejd Jpne [eusiul jenuue
9yl o} sebueyo jueoyiubis Aue jeyy pesodosd si j| jerocsdde [ewiioy 10} sanWIWO) 81eI0dIOD By} 0} pajussald pue Mmojeq 1no
19s s| Abeiess ey "ueld Jpne [enuue €1/210Z SYl JO JUOl) 8Y] 1B Pepnjoul si ueid ypne ayj jo Aiealep 1oy ABeieuss s jlounon 8y

"B0UBIBIO1 JO SULIS) S 89U B} UM S0UBPIOODE Ul [eAoidde Jeul) Joj eepiluwo)) ejesodion
SY} 0} peRiwqgns si uejd sy pue swes} usweabeuew Jioy} pue sI0}08lig Yum pesibe pue passnosip usaq eAey sypne pesodoid
8yl -ueid yupne jenuue peseq Msu ‘psielbeiul Ajiny e epinoid 01 Z1/1 102 Buunp usXepspun Miom pnely sAll0BaI PUE SAIIOB-0Id
pue ejjoud pnel} s jlounod ey pue ‘sueld sseuisnq ‘sieisibal ysu yun ssauisng pue [eyuswpedesp ‘e1eiodiod sy; uUoNEISPISUOD
Ojul ).} pue |IoUNod 8y) $SOI0. sjuswipedep pue syun sssuisng Buioey sysu [elusiod ay) Uo paseq oJe ueld sy uiyum pesodoid
SHpne syl ‘¢i/zLog Buunp pelejdwod eq o1 supne [ewsiul AeBuuen Joy ueid upne [BUJSIUI [ENUUB 8U} INO S18S JUSWNO0P Siy |

€1/210¢ Abajenig pue ue|d upny [eulalu] Yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 20

€ 10 g obed

‘spJepuels
pajdecoe pue suoieinbal YIM 8OUBLLIOJUOD-UOU [BIJUBISONS S|0JJU0D ssauisnq
Aoy Ul sesseuxesm ‘pessaippe Ajeienbepe Buleg jou sy sseuisng [EONLD ;1 Auolid

‘SMO||0} Se POSSaSSE 84 |[IM YOIUM ipNne sy} wos sbulpuly 8y} uo peseq
o [IM uoiuido SIy] "MSH IO BaIE S|GBHPNE 8U} JOAO PSSIOISXS [0JUOD JO [9AS] 8L} UO uoluido |jeseno ue apiroid M spodel Jpny

-podaJ yelp ayy 0} esuodsal s Juswebeuew Jo 1diadal 8} JO SHOSM OM] UIYLIM PonNSS Buleq spodad jeul} Yyum Buresw
SIU} JO SY8aM OM] UIYUM paonpoid 8q [im spodes 1pne yelq "Bunesw 1xe ue je Jebeuew 8dIAIeS 8y} 01 sbuipulj 8y} uo 3oeqpses)
opinoid |jim Joupne ayl MJompiel 8yl Jo uone|dwod Buimojjod “Jebeueyy Ipny pue Jojoaiid JueAs|al 9y} YUM wewesibe Ag paliea
aq Aew podel Jo 9jA1s 8y 'SUpne juswysi|qe}ss Buipnioul ‘uejd UpnE [BNUUE SU} UIYIM paurejuod joefoid ypne yoes Joj paonpo.d
aq |im spodes ypne [eulod "ueid ypne peaibe sy} yum sioyoelg le o1 pepiroid si siy} pue JjebeurW 90IAI9S By} pue Jolpne
ay1 Ul0g JO selyigisuodsal ey} pue lpne yoes jo sebels Aoy oy N0 sies yoiym ‘jooojoud Buirioded ypne pesibe ue sney s

‘Buyesw Ixe ey} Joj eiep psuueld pue sAep 1e6pnq peuueld ‘seamainielul JO 8iNpsyos pauueld ‘yoeoudde
pue adoos Jpne ‘seAiloelqo eae ayi spnjoul ||IM 8oUSIS)el JO SUISL IpNE JUBAS[SJ BY} 10} 9oUSISL8) JO SWIS) Pejieiep auj) ealbe
01 1pNEe Yors J0} SIUsi|0 paiiiuspl syl Uim pabuelie aie sBunesw Buiuueld ‘ueld ypne jeussiul [enuue 8yi JO reaosdde Buimojjod

s|oo0301d Buipoday ¢

‘uonessedo-0o Joj seiunpoddo Xees pue sysu Buibiows 10 UIBOUOD Jo sease Aue Ajuep! ‘suejd Jpne Jno MmaiAsi O] SJolpne
[BUISIX® S,]10UNOD) 8Ul YUm Apeinbes 198w Sp HIOM HPNe JO uoneoldnp Aue esiwiuiw 0} sdjsy pue 3IOM Ino Uo Soue|jes ooejd 0}
IpNe [BuISIXe SB|gEUS SIY] "Siseq [eo]joAo e uo pejo|dwod aie smalnal yidep-ul pue siseq [enuue Ue Uo pelse] 8Je s|0juod Aoy oy1
12y} selnsus yoiym aoeld Ul si iom jo swwelboid peuue|d B ‘YnseJ e Sy "swielsAs Xe} [1ounod pue Buisnoy ‘ejgeAledel Sjunoooe
‘sjgqeAed sjunoooe ‘louod Arelefpng pue wewebeuew [eloueuly oibelens ‘|joihed epnjoul pue e} 01 ajem Aayl jI 1ouNoD 8yl
uo 10edwWi [BUSTEW B SABY P|NOM UOIUM 8SOU] ale swiaisAs [eloueuy Aoy ay] - swelsAs [eloueul) Aoy, Se IPNE |BUISIXS Pue [BUISiUl
£q peynuepl usag eABY pue S8AI109[qO reuonessdo sy Buineiyoe o} Juepodwl ale Yoym swieisAs JoO tequinu B sey |Iouno) eyl

‘)JOM Hpne pauue|d pue SjuUsUISSOsSSE S JIPNe [euleiul JO

Jewea fe pue BulpuesiapuN JIBY} WIKUOD 0} SI0308iI] PUEB SIONPNE [BUISIXS S JIOUN0D 8yl LM SHSU pPalyuUspl 8yl SSNosi(q e
‘syuswiebueie

seoines pateys ‘uoljesiBe meu "Be syluow g Ixsu 8y} Buunp eoeid exe} 01 anp sebueyo psesodoid Aue jo meirey e
‘pnely Buiobuo oy [erizusiod

oUl UM sease Aue Ajjuepi O} 8ANBIlU| pneld [euolleN 8u} jo ped se po1a|dwiod MIoMm Byl WO} SBWO0DIN0 AUB JO MOINDY e
‘syun sseuisng ay) Aq psiiuept seade ysu ybiy esoys biubiy

01 IDUNOD Y} SSOJoB JuUN ssauisng yoes o} siebiey sbulnes Jo/pue sue|d ssauisng ‘sieisiBel 3SU USLND |jB JO MBIAeY e

e1/2102 ABareiiS pue ueld Hpny [eusdiu] Yeuq - AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo]



Page 21

©¢ J0 ¢ obed

"seljieinba. jeroueuly ojul suoliebiiseul 81eidwioo o) uede) swiy jo yibuse] e

pue ‘(suolyepuswiioosl | AJLOLId UO SNOO0J YlIM) SUOHEPUSWILLIODSS JIPNE JO suonejusws|dw] e

{(eah [eloueUl BY} UIYIM %Gp) Ueld HPNE [euilul 8U) JO Uons|dwo) e
‘8Je 92IAJSS IPNY [eulelul 8yl Jo) siseq Ajspenb e uo espiwILIo)
oy} 0} pepiroid Apusund ase yolym sioyedipul souewloped 8yl "UOIOUNY JPNE [Buisiul S,uolESiUERIO BU] JO SSeUaA0aYS aul
JO MsIAS) pue BuLioyuoW Byt Yim JsiSse 0} eapiwiwio) 8jeiodio s,1ouno) ey} 01 soueuLiopad S,801A18S 8} O sjielep Yodel apn

"UoISIA0Id 801AI8S UNO JO S}08dSE |[e JOA0D UYOIUM S[enuewll Ipne pajieiep aABY SUoNo| PUE 81I0je( Pue Wes)} ashoy

-Ul 8y} ujog omewely Buoyuow pue juswebeuew souewloped 1sngol e AQ peuoddns spiepuess [euoissejoid yum aul U jno
peLLUeD SI MIOM 1PNy jeulalu] 'spiepuels jeoiuyos) pue Ajenb 1saybiy ayj Jo seoines H_Usm feutsiul BulIsAl|ep O} PAIIILILLIOD aJe s
aoueinssy Ayjend v

"pajuswe|dull JoU SUOIEPUSLILIODa) JO seaJe Juedliubls uo Alejuswiwiod pue ‘ue|d ypne jsurebe abeisnod
upne jo sjiejep Buipnjoul pue ‘epiroid 0} sjge 8le M SOUBINSSE [[BJSAO 8U} JO JusWelels pessBe ue pue uoluido [enuue ino
Buietodioou peonpoud osje si eaniwWwo) 81elodio) s, j1ounod ay} o} poday [enuuy uy ‘isenbes uodn spodas ypne uno 10 sa1doo
N} yum pepiroid eq [jim pue spodal ypne feuly jle jo Arewwins Ajyiuow e yym papiroid osfe ese e91iwwon sy} 1O sJsquisip

‘Burjes soueInsse pajWl], B POAISOSI YOIUM SHPNE [ews)ul pajejdwod AU Joj SeLBLILLNS Pajielsp Yim
Jayiebol lom pele|dwiod 4o isi| B sepnjoul pue ‘siseq Apeuenb e uo espwWog o1eiodio) s,j1ounod syy 03 pajussald si podss v

"asnge o Jolse jueoliubis o} uedo welsAs ayy Buines| yeem Ajjeisusb si j04u0) :90UBINSSY ON
"Msu
18 s9ANo8lgo welsAs 8yl Ind 0} SB YoNs aJe Sj0JU0D JO WBISAS BY] Ul SBSSBUN RSN :80UBINSSY payillii]

"MSl Je saA10s[qo welsAs ayy
JO swos Ind yoym sesseudeam ale 8oy} INg ‘WelsAs punos Ajjeoiseq & Sl eloy]  :@oUBINSSY [BUBISGNS
"SaAI108[qo WielsAs 8yl easiyoe 0] paubisep |04U0D JO WBISAS puUNoS B si aJsy | :80UBINSSY [N

:spodal Jipne ul pasn eq |jim uojuldo o sjeAs| Buimoyjoy sy

"s8oljoeid Bupjiom poob ‘pessaippe eq 01 Senss|

sseuIsnq Jaylo :wejshs Juswebeuewl SSBUISNG BY} YIM S8OUBLLIOLOO-UOU JOUI :e AwoLid
"suofie|nfal YUM 0UBLLIOJUOD-UOU ‘UOIIONPaJ 10 UOHEINIIUSPI
Msu elenbspeur ‘eale juswenoid) {passelppe 8q 0} senss| sseulsng juepoduw g Aod

€1/210¢ ABerens pue ue|d Hpny jeusaju] yeiq — AebuLeH jo ybnolog uopuo-



Page 22

€2 40 v obed

"JUBLWIUIBAOK)
(2007 Ul IPNY [BUIS1U IO} 9011084 JO 8p0D Y4dID Ul Yum Ajiny selidwod yun sssuisng eyt ‘ue|d upne paseq )su syl JO AIBAlBP
olqeUS 0} palinbai USRS POYISW PUEB S80IN0Sal ‘S[|IXS SY} Sa1J10ads HIoM JIPNE PSOINOSINO BY3 4O} JOBIIUOD By L ‘suoiieinbay
1PNy puUe SIUNoooy AJoniels syl pue g/6l 10V JUSWUISA0D [BO0T] 89Ul JO |G| UOIOSS Jepun sjuswalinbas Aloiniels s j1ouno)
Sy} |4IN} O1 J8pJO Ul S9OIASS Upne jeutsiul Bulurews) oyl opinoid |jIm J0BIJUOD PBdINOSINO dyj "$9s$9004d uoneousd weld
oi108eds JO UOISIdLIOD By} Ul ISISSE O} MIOM 8yeuspun pue siefeuewl 0} S|0JU0D PUE SHSH UO 8dIApe aplAc.d ‘oo1oeId JO S8POD
Areuldiosip s J1ounod syt jo seyoeeiq [erusiod ejeblisenul is1oefoid pnely Aoueusy uo '6°e sjuswipedsp [IOUNOD JBYI0 Yim Buriom
‘s108(0ud pnel-181UN0D BANOR-04d BXepepUN Wes] pneld-iuy 81eiodio) 8snoy-ul 8yl P PNy [BUISlU| JOIO8S Olgnd 8yono |
puE 83018 Aq 2 L0g idy WOy palaAllep aq [Im ‘suonejnbel uswiainoo.d s, [Iounod 8yl Yim 8oUeploode Ui 18] ‘JoB4U00 JesA aaiul
ayl ‘210z Aenuep ul ‘Juswesibe yomawell B BIA ‘UOPA0ID JO ybnoiog UOpUOT BUl O} papieme sem SSOIASS IpNe [eussiul Jo
uoisinoad au] 10} 10BI1UO0D BY| "10BU0D papircid Ajjeussixe Ue pue Jels asnoy-ul Jo Xiw e AQ palenljep sI 82IAISS JIpNE [eussiul ey

S92IN0SdY G

e1/210z ABaieng pue ueld upny jeussiu] yeiq — AebBuureH jo ybnoiog uopuo



$¢ 10 G abed

066 [erog
Sl Aousbunuon
.08 [e101-gng
08 sa1el0108JI1q IV Juswabeue |y
0S sajel010941q IV dn mojjod |
™ 9l yyesH 21and SYsiY pue SwelsAg 81ei0108.(]
nn_/_.v wuswdojensq jeuonesiuebip
(@) 08 pue sjdoad — SaAlINoex3] JoIyn (S Buipnjoul) sysiy pue sweisAg 81840108.1(]
Dq.u Gt S89IM8S BuisnoH pue }npy S$YSIH PUE SWaISAS 81eI0108.i(]
(supny
61 80INIBS S, uaipliyD |o0yog Buipnjoul) s)siy pue sweisAg 81.10108.iC]
08 Aljigeureisng g aoejd SYslY pue SWelsSAS e1ei0108ii(]
G/ $804nosey o1etodio) HpNy ||
09 s8ounosay ojeiodion 1PNy Juswainoosd
oS $824n0say a1elodio) S)siY pue swelsAg a1ei0108.i(]
06 $804N0S8Y o1elodion) (SdM) sweisAg [eroueuy Aoy
sheq ajeloloaliqg BalY |

80 UBD X}IOM JO UMOPMEaI] 8] "MIOM S,WES} PNBI-IUE 81810d100 8y} J0

Jo ped se peje|dwod o4 [|im Jey] 3IoMm Jpne 8pnjoul Jou S8op YoIym ‘0Se S

'SE pasuUEWWINS

‘Aebuiien 1oy sewoH yum juswss.By jons 80IAIBS By}
PaJaAljep o 0} sABp JO Jequinu |10} 8y "1OBJIUOD B}

UM 80UBPIOOTE Ul ST Yolym ‘JesA [ejoueull £/ L0Z oYt Bulinp paje|dwoo 8q 03 yiom Jpne [euisiul 9U1 1IN0 s18S MOjaq 8|ge] oy

€1/210¢2 :ebeisnon upny [euwssiu AsbuiieH

€1/210g Abelens pue ue|d upny [eulsiu| Yeiq — AebuleH Jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Page 24

€2 J0 9 obed

/aoueuid Buirepdn “HpNe j|n} 1se| 8y} 9ouls WaisAs 8y} 0}
G ¥ ajei0dion jo pesH seBueyo Aue BuiApuep| ((d1H) meiney [ere UbiH | (S4M) JuswiiseAuj pund uoisusd
SWI8}SAS %
Buiunoooy ‘siebpng
— 80uBUI4 JO PEesSH
/1ebeueiy "S|0J1U00 JuBdlIubIS
souewWIOpSd pue A8y Yioqg jo Buiise] pue [UOIIeIUSUNI0P
dzd/ausweinoold Buipnjoul pue ‘SuoijepusWIWOd8) ipne snolas.d (S4M)
oL ¥ o1ei0dion) o pesH jo dn-mojjoy Buipnjou; ‘Upne weisAs |ens) ybiH (sioupai)) o|qeAed SUN0ODY
"Suoljepuswwooal snoinaid
SwolsAs ¥ jo dn mojjo} snid ‘wsIsAS 8yl JO SSBUBAIROBYS
Bulunoooy ‘s1ebpng oy 01 Aoy ale yolym sjojuod asoy; Bulisel
— 80URUI{ JO pESH PUE ‘SUBUOMOJ} PUB UOIIBIUSWINOOP WisisAs
/@oueuld Buiepdn ‘upne ||n} 1Se| 8yl 9ouis welsAs ay} 01 (S4M)
g ¥ ajesodion) jo pesH sebueyo Aue Buikuep] ((H1H) meiney [eAeT ybiH Jobpa jesausr) ¥ BulUNOOOY
"SuoijepuUaLLILIOOas snojaaud
0 dn mojjo} snid ‘welsAs ay) JO SSeUBAIIOBYS
Ainseal] g suolsuad ay} 01 Aey ate yolym sjosjuod asoy) buiisel
— @0ouBUId JO peoH pUE ‘SLIBUOMO]} PUB UOIIBIUSLINOOP WasAs
/@oueuid Buirepdn ‘Upne jjn} 1se| sy} 8oUIS WelsAs 8y} 0}
o e a1eli0dion) o pesH sebBueyo Aue Buikyuepi (4H) meiney [eAeT YbiH (S wswebeuey Ainsea. |
"suoljepuswiwodal snoinaid
swelsAs B o dn mojjoy snid ‘welsAs 8y} JO SSBUSAIROBYS
Bununoooy ‘syebpng oy} 01 A8y 8Je YoIyMm S|o1juod asoyl bulisel
— 9ouBUl4 JO peSH pUE ‘SLIBUOMO}} PUEB UOIBIUSWNOOP WieisAs
/@ouBUld Bunepdn ‘ypne ||y ise| sy} 8ouls WwalsAs ayi 0}
S /S sjeiodioD jo peeH | sebueyo Aue BuiAyiuep) ((HTH) meiney [9AsT YBiH (S4M) Bundieosy ysey |
SwelsAS B
Builunoooy ‘syebpng "S|0J1U0D JuedlIubIS
— 90UBUI4 JO peSH pue Ay yjoqg jo Bupssel pue uojjeuswinoop
/eoueuld Buipnjoul pue ‘SUoiEpUSLILLIOda) Jpne snoirald (S4Y) j1043u0) Aserebpng ®
oL e a1eJ0dion) JO pesH j0 dn-mojjo} Buipnjou; ‘Upne weisAs [eas] YbiH | 1uswebeue [eioueul oiberens
sheq | Japenp usi|o . 8doog aAiedIpu| o111 Ipny

‘S)SII pUE SWelsAS 81el0}0aiiq PUe SWISAS [eloueul4 Ao)) — s9oInosay 91es0dio)

c1/2102 ABajens pue ue|d Hpny [euisiu| yeiq - AsbuieH jo ybnoiog uopuot




Page 25

$T 40 L obed

1714 Jo pesH

"SuoljepuswIWIodal snoiaaid-

40 dn mojjo} snid ‘wisisAs 8y} JO SSBUBAILOBYS

8y} 01 A8y sk Yoiym sjos3uod esoyy Buiissy

pue ‘SUBYIMO}} PUE UOIFBIUBSLUNDOOP WaISAS
Buirepdn ‘upne [N} 1SE| Y} 90UIS WBISAS 8y} O}
sebueyo Aue BuiApuspl ((Y1H) meiney |eas ybiH

(S4M) HANN

St

1719 Jo pesH

"suollepuswiwooa.l snoinaad

Aue jo dn mojjo4 snid ‘(pepnjour eJe siuswaiinbsi
Hpne [euisixe ||e ainsus) S|0Juoo jueoliubis

pue Ae¥ yioq jo Bunss; ‘siebeuewl WeIsAS yum
@say) bBulesibe pue upne snojraid aouls sebueyo
Aue BuiAjiuspl ‘SpyeyOMOl) pUB UOIIRIUBWINDOP
wejsAs bunepdn Buipnjoul ‘welsAs

8y} JO UpNne paseq Ysii [N :MaiAs WalsAs ||n4

(S4) xe] rounon

4

114 Jo pesH

"SuoljepuswWooal snoinaid

Aue jo dn mojjo4 snid ‘(pepnijoul e4e sjuswaiinbau
HpNe [euIBIX® |[e 81NSus) S|0JU0D Juedlubls

pue Aey y1oq jo Bunse) ‘siebeuew welsAs yum
osay} buiesibe pue ypne snolnaid souls sebueyo
Aue BuiAynuspl ‘SUEYOMO}4 PUB UOHBILSWINDOP
weysAs Buizepdn Buipnjour ‘weisAs

8yl JO Jpne psaseq XSH [|N4 :MdIASS WBSAS [N

(SdM) sypeueg BuisnoH

o]

SWIaIsAS ¥
Bunnunoooy ‘syebpng
— 8dukUl4 JO peaH
/9oueul4
ajelso0dion) jo pesH

"S|0J1U00 JueolIUbIS

pue A y1oq Jo Buiss} pue ‘UoleUSWINOOP
Buipnjoul pue ‘suoljepuswiwiossl JIpne snoinaid
J0 dn-mojjo} Buipnjout ‘ypne welsAs |ors| ybIH

(S4M) (s10109Qg
Apung) sjgeaieosy S1UN0OOY

Ainsesi] g suoisuad
— 9dUueUl4 JO pesH

"suollepuswILIo9al snoiraid

jo dn mojjoy sn|d ‘welsAs sy} JO SsBUSAOSYS
9y} 03 A8y ale Yyolym sjo43u00 asoy) Buiyssy
pue ‘SLBUOMO[} PUB UOIIBIUSWINOOP WS)SAS

sAeQg

Jepenp

usI|n

2doog aAleoIpu|

911} Hpny |

€1/210z Aberens pue ue|d Hpny [euleiu] Yeiq — AsbuleH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 26

€2 J0 g obed

v-1

awooU|
B |0Ju00) BuUNOdY
soueUl] JO pPESH

soueinsse opinoid 01 Wie [[IM smajaal Aiepenb
eyl '€L/2L0g Ul uibeqg ||IM 8|qeAigdal SjUNodde
pue jo13u00 Aieebpng Jo) Buiiipne/Buliojuow
snonuiuod dofensp 0} swwesboid ey

(e19BAI908. SIUNODOE PUR [0JIUOD
ArelaBpng) sweisAs [eloueul)
Aey ay1 1o} Bunpne/Buiojuow
sSNoNuUIUoY o juswidojensQ

V/N

y-i

paiinbai se
30V pue siojosdid IV

sybnoJoq Jeyio pue adijod 8y} yum

Bunpiom juiof pue suonedljdde Jsusq usinpnel
ojul suonebiseAu| — wes | yeusg BuisnoH
"s90INIeS BuisnoH pue

HIH UuMm sealeriul uiol — pneid BuisnoH/Aoueus |
-Bupiied spuepisal ‘sebpeq peajdesi|

‘ugeusg BuisnoH {oJAed ‘suoisuad :epnjoul jiim
seaJe uoiebiisanul Aoy “eAljelliu] pneld [euolieN

wea ] uolebiisenu]

€H pue pnel4-uy 93elodio)
asnoy-ul Ag paliaAlep -
swiwelbold pnel-luy o1eiodio)

Ot

$90JN0seYy
a1esodion 40 J01084Ig

¥ 1/£102 404 suondunsse pue s9559204d
Buiuueld pue syebie} sBuines ¢1/210¢ isurebe
sselboud ‘syebie] Aienlep Asy Jo Burioyuow
pue uolepliiea Buipnjoul ‘ewwelbold dS3H syl
Jo} ssalboud pue sjebiey sBuines Ay Jo mainey

awiweiboid sbuineg aieiodio)

0L

1714 0 peeH

"sJaplo
Buipue)s 10843U00 Bulpnjoul ‘sejni 8inpeoo.d
[BIOUBUY S,[I0UNOD 8y} pUe Sluswisinbal

A101n3B1S UM ueldwod ase swelshs

oy} pue ‘eunypuadxe pue swooul ‘syuswsbuelre
Bulieys eiep pue Juswasbeuew uoljeuloul
‘syuswebuelie eoueusanob o1 prebas yum

sysu ey} Buibeuew Ul 9AI108)e pue dlenbepe aJe
pUE paljilusp] Ueaq SABY S|0JU0D A8 S, 801NI8S
ay1 1By} 9oUBINSSE 8pIA0Id 0} MaIAdI B 8] |IIM SIYL

uone.bsiul
1719 pue S90IAI8g JaWoIsnD

I

b

SdAD
‘@oueul JO pesH

/adoueuly
s1el0dion jo peseH

‘siepinoid |joiAed peainosino

UlIM S[00YOs 8soy} 40} Yim paljdwod useq eney
Juswiele]s 8y} JO sluswaiinbal 8y} 1By} WIyuod
0} Bunsey sjdwes 838|dwoo [IM Jpne [eusalu]
“JesA 8y} Ul peliiISI pue Palonpap suoinguiuod
uoisuad ,sisyoes)] buimoys jusuisiels

renuue ue 818idwiod 0} palinbal si 1ouno syl

@L/LLog
Juswiaiinbal uoneoYILeD UEeID)

SUOIINQLIIUCD
suolsuad ,slayoes |

sAe(

1opend

jusliD

2doog aAljeoIpU|

oI} 1pny |

e1/2102 ABaieng pue uejd 1pny jewsiul yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuoT]



Page 27

£¢ 10 p @bed

0cl [ejo|
"Hpne waisAs [eloueuy
A8 [enuue sy} poddns [jim msinel Bujobuo
siyl ~tesh ey ssotoe Ajeaiiosye Bunelado
pue soe|d Ul aue S|043U0D [BIOUBUL ABY 1BU]
sheq | Jeuenp sy 2doog aAeoIpu| |11 Upny

€1/21og Abajens pue ueld upny [eussiuj Yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 28

€2 10 0} obed

Gl 1%

JuswaInNo0Id
a1ei0dion

10 pesH

"OAI}O8Ye pue
aoe|d Ul 948 SM8IA8 Juslueoeld/eoinies Jeinbes pue
swisiueyoew abusjieyd sreudoidde uleluod assyl 18yl
WLILUOS pue sjuswipiedap ulyum soeid ui ssibelells
BU1 SUILUEXS ||IM MBIASJ 8] "SIapJo BUlpUBls JOBIU0D
Buipnjout ‘sajnJ 8inpaoo.d [eloueuly S, [IOUNOD BU}

pue sjusweJinbes Aioiniels yum jueldwod ele aoe|d
Ul $9s58004d 98U} JOYISUM UIBLIBOSE |lIM MaIAS] BY L
"'sSeaJe 80IAISS MSU

ybiy pue wnipaw jo sjdwes e 1o} [IDUNOD 8y} Ssode
aAoeye pue soe|d Ul a4e s9sse004d BulUOISSILLWLIOD
1yl eoueinsse apinoid 0} melAel B 8d [[Im SIYL

$80IAI8S JO BUIUOISSILILLIOD

0¢ 4

uswaIn20id
aeiodion

10 pesH

"s1opJo Buipuels 10Bi1u00

Buipnioul ‘sejnJ aanpsa204d [elouBUl S JIDUNOD U}
pue sjuswelinbas Alomnjels yum jueldwoo sle eoeid
Ul $8ss9004d 8y} JOYloyM UIBLISOSE [IM MBINSI 8]
"S10BAIU0D Ms1 ybiy pue

winipaw Jo sjdwes e 1o} |IoUNo) 8yl SSOIOB SAI108YS
pue aoe|d Ul aie sessed0id BuLojUOW 10BIIUOD

1eyl eoueInsse apinoid 01 Malnsl e 8d |[IM SIYL

seinpeoold Bulioluow 19B4U0D

0t L

UBWaIN20Id
ajesodio)

O pesH

‘saii0be1eo Jopusa s|geideooe syl

uiyum sjje} ebesn jeys pue ‘sispJio Buipuels J0BJU0d
Buipnioul ‘sejns ainpasoid ferouBUl S, |IoUNoY 8y}
pue spuswalinbal Aloiniels yum jueldwod s| walsAs
ay1 1By} eoueinsse apiaoid 01 mainsl B 8] [|IM SIyL

‘sassaoo.d
(09g4) JepJo-uou Jo asn

ot 4

JusWeIN20Id
ayelodio)

jo pesH

EERY
2inpeo0.d [BIOUBUY S,|IOUNOY 8y} pue sjuswaiinbal
Aiomniels yum weldwoo st jeuod uolieionb o4
ajedwon), ayj Jo |1OUNOY 8y} SSOIo. 8sn [elusupedsp
1By1 souBINSSE 9pIA0Id O} MSIASI B 8q |[IM SIYL

sasseo0.d uoieionb
pue reuod o4 e18dwon, Jo esn

sAeq

Puend

Juaid

2doog aAledIpU|

91} Hpny

PNy 1uswisandoldd

e1/2102 AbajesiS pue uejd Hpny [eusdiu] yeiq - AebureH jo ybnoiog uopuo]




Page 29

$¢ 40 1} abed

09 [e101
‘ipne
wielsAs |eroueul Aoy [enuue ayy poddns |m mainel
BuioBuo siy] “Jeak sy} ssosoe Ajeaioeys Buesedo

1pny jo pesH pue aoe|d Ul 8Je S|0JIUOD [B]OUBUYL A8Y JBU} 9OUBINSSE {e1qeied

/IUBWBIND0Id apinoid 0} Wik [Im smeinal Ausuenb eyl "€1/2102 SIUNODOE) W8ISAS [eIoURUIY

s1esodion ul uibsq jiim sjqeked syunoooe Buiipne/Burioyuow Aoy syy Joy Buipne/Bulioiiuow

o) P-1 JO peaH snonujuoo dojeAsp 0} swweiboid ay| SNONUIIUOD Jo Jusudojene(g

€1/2102 ABe1ens pue ue|d Npny jeusaiu] yeid - AsbuneH jo ybnoiog uopuo-




Page 30

€z 10 2\ obed

0l

v/

S80INIBS
1140 pesH

pue sa|nJ einpao0id [eloueUl S [IoUN0Y 8yl bulpnjoul
‘syuswialinbal [eo0] pue Aionjels yum ueldwod si
welsAs ayj 1eyl soueinsse apiroid 01 mained B 8q [IIM SIY L

uoddng 82iA1eS — S80INIBS ]

SEIVELS
11 o pesH

"S]UBLISSeSSE [eulalxe AQ epewl SuoiiepuswiIoda)

Aue jo dn ' mojjo} B yum Jayiebol sjuswebuelre
wewoebeuew pue Bupodss ‘BULIOHUOW JBAO S[O1U0D AdY
JO MSIASJ B SPNJOUl [IM HPNE 8y "S8jnJ @inpadoid [eloueul
s,[1oUnoY ay1 Buipnjoul ‘syuswaiinbal (oo pue Aioiniels
JoY10 pue ‘seioljod A1no9s 1| uaiuno jueldwod si

We1SAS 8y} Jeyl 8ourInsse apiaoid 01 Mainel B 8 |jim SiyL

spusweburLIR 80UBUISADL)
UOIJBWLLIOJU| — S80IAISS ||

¢l

SO0INISS
1130 pesH

FNENIENE

paisoy syuswabuelse Aue Buipnioul ‘sjuswebueire
JuswebBeueWw pue BULIOHUOW JOAO S|0IIU0D Ao

JO MaIASJ B 8pNjoUl [IM JpNe 8y "se|nJ ainpedo.d [eloueul
s,[1oUNoN a1 Buipnjoul ‘syuswiaiinbal (o0l pue Alojniels
J8Y310 pue ‘se1oljod A1unoeg 1] 1usuno jueljduwioo si

WweisAs oy} jeyl soueinsse apinoid 0} Mainsl e oq |IIM SIY L

sjuswsbuelie

Ilemally pue AIeA0O8) J81SesIp
‘dog Buipnjour sususbuelie
aousljisel — $82INBS 1|

{

¢l

v/

S9INIBS
1110 pesH

"syuswebuelie Juswabeuew pue Buipodes ‘Bunoyuow
yum Joyieboi lemaiy ey Buipnjour syuswebuelie Allinoss
[e0160] pue [e21sAyd S [IoUN0YD 8yl JOAO S|0IIU0D AdY

JO MeIASS B 8pNjOUl [[IM IPNE 8y "se|nJ 8inpeoo.d [eloueul
s, [1IouUnoD 8y} Buipniouy ‘syuswiaiinba (00| pue Aloiniels
JaY10 pue ‘seioljod A1noeg 1| Jueuno jueldwoo s

wa1sAs ey} Jeyl eoueinsse apinoid 0] Malnel B g [|Im SIU]

sjuswabuelie A1inoss

[eo160] pue |eoIsAyd — seoinIeg ||

cl

¥/€

S80IAIeS
1140 pesH

"sjuswebuelie Jusiebeuew pue Buipods.

fuoluoW ‘s9ssa00.d UOIeI|IOUOD8) pUE Jsjsuei}

elEp ‘Sessenold Juswebeuew abueyo ‘sjuswebuelie
Aunoes |eoibo] pue [eoisAyd J8A0 S|0J3U0D Ao

JO M8IASJ B 8pNIOUl |jIm Jpne ayj "sejni ainpaooid [eloueuly
s Jlounon ay} Buipnjoul ‘syuswiainbal [eso] pue Aoinjels
1810 pue ‘saioljod AINoag || Juauno jueldwoo sl

WwslsAs ay) 1y} eoueinsse apinoid 01 MaiAal B 8q |IM SIY L

sesseo0.d a01AIes Aay 10} Bunss |
pue uonesBip eleq — seoinies 1] |

she(

\_mtm:O

Ju9ld

adoog aAiedIpu|

S UPNY |

-HPNY 1]

c1/210z AbaresiS pue uejd Hpny [eusslu] Yeuq - AebuireH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 31

€2 40 ¢} obed

S/

elof

¢l

SO0INISS
1140 peeoH

‘sjuswisbueLie Juswebeuew

pue Buipodal ‘Buuoyuow ‘B2IAID) Yum siuswebuelie
Bunsoy sy} ‘syuswsbueite Alunoses [eo160] pue jeoisAyd
‘s9sse004d uonelIouoo8l ‘syuswAed-s ‘uswebeuew pue
Ayinoas uolzewIojul ‘syuswebuelie soueUIaA0b ‘U0I109[j00
anuanal ‘Buissasoid JBAO S|0JU0D AsY || JO MBIAal B
apnioul [IIM HpNEe 8yJ "sejnJ ainpsooud [elouBUl S,[I0UN0YD
ay1 Buipnjour ‘spuswialinbal [BO0] pue Aioinieis Jeylo pue
‘se101j0d Alunoag || jusiind jueyduwiod s| welsAs oyl 1.yl
soueInsse apinold o} mainas uoledlidde ue aq |jiim Sy

upne uoneojidde 30 - Bupiied

¢l

$80INIOG
1110 pesH

‘Sjuswesbueiie

juswabeuew pue Buipodsl ‘Buioyuow ‘BoIAIN

yum sjuswsbuele Buiisoy sy ‘syuswebueite Alinoes
[eoibo| pue |eoisAyd ‘sesseooud uoneljiouoos. ‘sjuswied
-9 ‘Juswebeuew pue AJN08S UoIlBWIIOMUI ‘SlUsWsbue.Ie
9oUBUISAOD ‘Buisse00.d JSAO S|04U0D AS) |[B JO MBIASI B
apnjoul [jIm Hpne ayj "sejni ainpedoud [eloueUl S,|1I9UN0YD
oy} Buipnjoui ‘syuswalinbal [eoo] pue Alojniels Jsylo pue
‘s9101j0d AJN28g || Juasno jueldwos s WwelsAs sy} 1ey)
aouelinsse epinoid 01 maiaas uoliedidde ue aqg |im SIy |

sjuswiAed |
-8 Buipnjoul NOOI Aloyiny

‘Sjuswisbuelie Juswebeuew
pue BulojIUOW JBAO0 S|01JU0D A JO MaIAal B spnjoul

sAeq

lauenpd

s

adoog aAneoipuj

8y 1PNy |

€1/2102 Abalens pue ue|d upny [eussiu] Yyeiq — Asbuley jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 32

€2 J0 v1 obed

auljuol4 [elouUBUL S, [I0UNOD 8y} Buipn|oul ‘sjuswalinbal
8|buIg J0308.41Qg [e00] pue Aioiniels yum jueldwod sl 90IAI8s
0l L jueIsIssy 8y} 1By} @oURINSSE 9pIn0Id 0} M8IA8I B 8q |lIM SIYL 90IAI8S ABnUON
aor|[d Ul S|0J1U0D
pue Sysu A8y 10 mairal ‘einjipuadxs ‘spuswalinbel
[eooj pue Aioiniels yum aoueldwod (NOW
auljuoI4 pue) sjuswsbuelie edueuIaA0b 8yl J8A0 BoURINSSE
8|buIg Jo308.IQg epinoid 01 158104 Weylep Yum sjuswebuelie
oL % ue)sIssy S90IAISS PaJeys U} JO MaIA8I B 8 [IIM SIY suonenbay spiepuels buipes |
"90e|d Ul S|0JJU0D PUE SHSU A9 JO MaIASI
‘ainyipuadxe ‘syuswialinbai {eoo] pue Aoinieis yum
aulju0.i aoueljdwon ‘sainpeoold pue Adljod ‘syuswebuelre
abulg Joyoeaq | eoueuleAob Buipnjoul — 1ounod AlD weybuiuuig yim
G L ueIsSISsSy sjuswebuelie ay} Jo MalAal joAS| By B oq |IIM Siy ] Buipua Asuo ebay|
"SuUolEpUSWILLIOS
snoineid Jo dn mojjo} e pue ‘ainypuadxs pue
awooul ‘sedineg Auedold e1elsodio)) 03 sjuswpedsp
9o1M8s Wwod) seipadold a1elodiod Joy syuswsbueise M
Jojsuely ‘serpadoud a1es0diod Aidws Jo Juswebeuew
‘seipedoid Jayjo pue 81es0diod Jo [esodsip Jeno
S$|043U0D A8Y JO MBIABI B 8pN[ouUl pue S8|NJ aunpaoo.d
S80INIBS [e1oUBU S,[10UNO0Y) 8y} Bulpnjoul ‘syuswalinbal
Apadoid |BOO| pue AIoIniels Yum jueldwod st welsAs
Sl L JO peoH 8y} 181 8ourINSSE 8plAcid 0] MaIA8) B 8q |JIM SIY] MaINSY SeoIneS Apadoid
‘Sjuswebue.ie ,
juswieBeuew pue Bulojuowl 10BIIU0D ‘einjpuadxs |
pue aWooul ‘sjuswabuelie 8oUBUISAOD JSAO
S|041U0D A8) JO M8IARL B BpNjoUl pue sejnJ 8inpaoo.d
Aujigeureisng [BIOUBUI S,[I0UNOY) 8y} Buipn|oul ‘syuswaiinbai
pue |eoo| pue Aioiniels yum jueldwod st wielsAs awwreibolid
oL 2 aor|d ‘1010841 8y} 1eU] 9oueInsse apinoid 01 Mainal e g ||Im SIYL uonelsusbey weyusyoy |
skeq | 1euenp IUETTS) 2doog aAljedIpy| oI UpNY |

:91eJi0)08.4i(q Alljigeuleisng pue 8oe|d

c1/2102 ABajeng pue ueld ¥pny [eusaiu| yeiq — Aeburel jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 33

€T 10 g} ebeyd

08 je1of
"$8559204d UOI}EDO|[B PUE ‘UOIIBI|IoU0DS]
pue Bupjueq ‘1d19o8. pue UOII08(|0D SLUCDUL JSAO
S]|0J1U0D A8 JO MBIAS) B 8pNnjoul puB S8jni ainpaso.d
auljuol4 [eloueUl) S, louno) sy} Buipnjous ‘siuswialinbal
8|buIg 10108417 |eoo} pue Aioiniels yum jueldwoo si walsAs
0L P uelsissy 8} 1By} 8oueINSSe apinoid 0] MaIASI B 8q |jIM SIY| 91SEAN Bpei]|
'S9S5900.d UOI1BO0||E PUE ‘UONBI|IOU0D8)
Awiouoo3 pue pue Bupjueq ‘ydieoos. pue UOI}09|j00 BLUODUI JSAO
uopelsusbey S]0.1U0D A8 JO MBIASI B 8pNnjoul pue s8jnJ ainpaoo.d
‘Buruueld [eloueUl S, [10UNOY 8y Buipnjoul ‘siuswalinbal
1010941 [eooj pue Auoinieis yum jueldwoos si wislsAs
oL z juelsissy 8y} Jeyl soueInsse apiAoid 0} Mainal B 8q [IM SIY | Ane sanjonnsedu] Aunuiwon)
"sjuswiabuelle JuswabeuBwW pue MaiAal
‘BULIOIUOW JSAO S[OJIUOD A8Y JO MBIABI B 8pN|oul pue
-$885900.4d UOIIBI|I0U0D84 (aunjipusdxe pue swooUu
‘sluswabueile soueulsnob pue sejni ainpssoid
auIjIu0L [elouBUl S, jlouno) oy} Buipnioul ‘siussiinba.
8|buIg J019941( [eoo| pue Aloiniels yum juelduwloo st 80Ines
G o 1uRISISSY 8y} 1By} 8ourINSSE 9pin0Id 01 MBIASI B aq |[IM SIY (punod JeD) seoinieg Bupiied
"Sjuewebuelle JuswebeuBW pue MalAsl
‘BulioluoW N0 S|0U0D A8Y JO MBIASI B 8pnjoul pue
:$955800.4d UOIIelIoU0D84 fain}ipusdxe pue swoou
‘sjuswsbueie eoueussnob pue sejn ainpsosoid
auIu0I4 [eroueul) s [louno? sy} Buipnoul ‘sjuswalinbsy
a|buIg J0108.ig [eoo| pue Aioiniels yum uelduwiod st eoines | (spwiad Buppied eoiaies eljussse
o S ueIsIssy 8y} 18y} eoueINsse apiroid 01 mainei B 8q ||IM SIY | pue sseuIsng) seoineg Bunjied
"syuswiebuele Juswebeuew
pue Buipiodsy ‘mainas ‘BULIOIUOW JBAO SJOIIUO0D
Aex jo melAel & spnjoul puB ‘einjipusdxe pue swooul
‘SjusWwsbueLte sourUIBAOB pue sejni ainpsso.d
|_sAe@ |[iepenp ) 2doog aAljedIpUy| 9[M} upny

€1/210g Aberens pue ueld 1pny Jeussiu] Yeiq — Aebuuey jo ybnoiog uopuo]




Page 34

€T J0 9} obed

sjuswabuelre
Buipodes pue meinal Bunojyuow ‘Juswebeuew
uonewLIoul ‘sjuswebuelie 8ouBLIBAOD ‘sejni
UOIJUSAIBIY| ainpaooud [eIouBUY S [IOUNOYD Sy} PUB SjusWaIINbal
AJe3 AJIOInIE}S PUE [B00] YUM uelidwoo st walsAs
» UonUeAald | 8yl pue ‘sysu ey Buibeuew ul SA13Osy e pue ayenbape
1010841 ale pue paliiuepl Usaq aAeY S|0JIU0D Ao $80INSS $958800.d UOISSILPE
0l o Aindag oy} ey eoueInsse apinoid 0} mainel B 8 ||Im Syl Jeak ul — SUoISSIWPE |00YOS
"SJepJo bulpue;s 10.Juoo buipnjoul ‘sejni ainpsooid (HSYIN) |
[EIOUBUY S,]IOUNOY BU} pue sjuswalinbal Aloniels gnH Buipsenbajeg AousBy-11nin
yuMm jueldWod ale swielsAs ey} pue ‘einypusdxe pue
awiooul ‘syuswebueiie Buueys elep pue juswsbeueul
sol|iue uoIjEWLIOLI ‘SlusWsbuelse souBUIEAOD O} piebs.
pue uaipjiyd UHM Sysl ey} BuiBeuew U sAjosye pue ejenbepe
1010041 aJe pue paljijuepl usaq aAeY S|0JIU0D A8Y S,801M8S
oL Aindeq oy} 1Y) 8oueINSSE aplAoid 0} MaIAal B 8] [lim SiyL
‘Ajajes pue
yyesH ‘ewoou] ‘A1INoss pue uoiosjoid eleq pund ,
[eioloun ‘Juswebeuew jassy splodal Buiunoooe
seljiwe ewesingsiq Buiyels {jonuoo Aeyebpng :d31S40
pue uaipliyn pue suooadsul ‘uoljesiueBio juswebeuely :Buipnjoul
Joyoaug seale ainjpuadxe pue awoouj Asy ul 8oe|d Ul SjoJju0d
S € AindeQ 91 JO usMEeUSPUN 8Q |[IM HpNE JUsWys|qelss Uy | Jusliys]ige]ss Sol|jwe} PUE UsIPiiYyy
‘Alsjes pue
yyeeH ‘ewoou| Ajnoss pue uonoseyoud Bleq ‘pun4
UOIJUSAIBLU| [eolgoun ‘uswebeurw 18ssy spJooss Buipunoooe
Ae3 Juswesingsiq Buiyels ‘josuod Areyebpng :d31S40
Y UONUBASId pue suoijoedsul ‘uoljesiuebio Juswsbeuepy Buipnjoul
Joyoaaqg seeJe ainypuadxe pue awooul Ay ul eoeld ul
gl -1 Aindaq S|0J1UOD 8U]} JO USXeUSspUN 8] ||IM Spne Jusulysi|geis3 se41uen) s, uaipiiyn
sAeQ Jayenpd elD 8d09og aAlEIIpU| ojM1 Hpny

:991A19G S,8]doad BunoA pue usipiiyd

e1/210z ABajeng pue uejd upny [eussiu] yeiq — AebuneH jo ybnoiog uopuo]



Page 35

©T 10 L} abed

uolusAIBIUj pue aunypuadxs ‘salyijiqel| lenpisel pue juswsbeuew

Ape3 1esse ‘sjuswebuelie eoueusanob oy piebsy

X UOIUBABIY YHm sysli sy} Buibeuew ul aAjos)e pue ejenbspe
Jo108.1Q 8Je pue paljljuspl Uusaq aARY S|0JIU0D A8Y ,S855890.d s|ooyos
ol oq) Aindaqg 2} Jeyl eoueinsse apinoid 0} meiasl B 8q |jiM SIYy | Auwlepeoe ~ s9ss800.4 Jojsues |

‘SjuswsbueLe

Buipodas pue meinas Buojuow ‘sispio Buipuess

10BJ3U00 Buipnioul ‘sejni ainpaooid [ejouB Ul S [10UNOY

8y1 pue sjuswalinbai Aloiniels yum jue)dwoos sle

SwieIsAs ayj pue ‘se|eosauwli} Alojniels pue [Boo] Yim

8oue||dwod :AsuoLu 40} SNjBA puUB S}S00 ‘suoljesiueblo

[euss1xs pue seiped puiyi 03 syuswAed pue ainypusdxs

‘syjuswsbuere Buueys elep pue Juswebeuew

saljiwed uoljewojul ‘syuswsbueiie soueutanob 0] pieba.

pue uaipiyn yum sysu eyl buibeuew ul sAnosye pue syenbspe

Joyoaliqg 8Je pue paljlluspl useq aAeY S|OsL0D A8Y S,80IAI8S
ol z Ainde( 9} 1ey} eoueinsse apinoid 03 mainal B aq ||Im SIy | $801AI9S uondopy pue 191so4
"SJeplo Puipuels 1oeJU0D Buipnjoul ‘sejnl einpaso.d siuswebuee aJeo Buines

[BIOUBUI} S, JIOUNOY U} puUe Sjuswaiinbas Alojniels

yum jueidwod sie swaisAs ay) pue ‘suonesiueblo

[euseixe pue seiyed paiyl 0} sjuswAed pue ainypusdxe

‘syjuswebuelie Buleys ejep pue juswsbeuew

sal|iwe uoljewIojul ‘sjuswiebueie aoueUISA0S 0] pieba.

pue uaJp|iyn YHMm sysil sy Buibeuew u) aAjosye pue ajenbspe

Joyosiiq 8Je pue paljijusepi Ussq SABY Sj0JIUOD A8Y S, 80INISS

oL 2 Aindaq 89U} Jey} 8dueINSSE 8pin0id 0 maIAS) B oq [JIM SIY |
'SJepJo bulpuels 10enuod Buipnjoul ‘sejni eanpadoid SAIIBINIU| SSljiwed pa|gnoJ |

[elouBUY S, [IOUNOY 8y} pue sjuswialinbal Aioiniels

Yum jueljdwod ale swelsAs sy pue ‘einyipusadxe pue

stuoout ‘syuswesbueue Buleys eiep pue juswsbeuew

uolyeuliojul ‘sjuswsbuelie esueulenob o) piebai

Buipienbajeg Yum syski ey buibeuew uj sadsye pue sienbspe

Jo1o8.1qg aJe pue paljijuep! Useq oABY S|0JIU0D AdY S, 80INI8S

ol S jueisissy 8U1 1y} sdueinsse apinoid 0} MaIASI B 8] [[IM SIY |
sAeQ Jlsueny u8lD 8doog aAneoIpuj ol upny

€1/210g Abslens pue ue|d 1pny [euseiu] Yeiq — AebuueH jo ybnosog uopuoT




Page 36

€27 0 g1 abed

i61

2101

L0

eouruUI-
SdAD
/SI9Yoea |
pesH
S|ooyos
fenpirpul

|[o0yoS Aepuoosg | e

pue ‘s|ooyog eroadg ¢ e

‘jooyog ounp L e

‘sjooyos AuesiNnN g e

‘Sjooyog juBul ¢ e

‘sjooyos Aewiid QL e

S|00Y0S 02 :€1/21 02 swwebold s|ooyos

‘sjeawl |0oyog pue :Ajejes pue yijesH

‘awo0ou] ‘AIinoes pue uooslold ereq ‘pund [eloigoun
‘JuswieBeueW 19SSy ‘SpJodas Bullunoooe Juswesingsig
‘Buiyels ‘jonuod Aelebpng (g31S40 pue suoloadsul
|ooyos ‘uonesiueblo juswabeuepy :sease Buimoljo}
oy} BULIBAOD ‘1oW BJe 92IAI8S 9U] JO SBAI08[go

oy} 1eyl ainsus 0} 9oe(d Ul S|04Ju0 8yl JO MBIAS)

1IN} & 89 [IIM Upne 8y ‘swuwelboid ypne sjooyos

oY1 Bunejdwios ul usyey si yoeoudde peseq ysu v

sjooyog Alepuoosg pue Aeuwild

:swweiboid upny s|ooyos

0}

20IMI9S
s.usipjiyd
— 90UBUI-

4O pesH

‘sjuswiabueLe

Burpodal pue melaes ‘Buioyuow S pue sesseoo.d
uolellouooay f1di9osa pue UuoIj098]j00 SWOJUI JBAO
S|043U00 A8) JO MBIABI B 8pN|oul pue s8|nJ ainpsedo.d
[e1oueUl S, jlounon sy} Buipnjoul ‘syuswalinbal

[eoo| pue Aiojniels yum jueldwoo st welsAs

8y} 1By} @oueInsse apinosd 031 Mainal B q [|IM Syt

Se0IAIBS papell

syuswebuelie Buiodal pue maiasl buuiojiuow
‘suonesiueblo jeuleixe pue saiped paiyl o1 sjuswiAed

©1/210g ABa1eng pue ue|d Hpny jeussiu] Yeiq - AebuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo’]



Page 37

¢g 10 61 obed

pue seiped paiyy 03 sjuswAed fainypusdxs pue
swoou| ‘sjuswiabuelie Buleys elep pue Juswebeuew

S90INIDS uoltewJoul ‘syuswebueie asueuIanob o1 pieba.
Ayunwiuion g yum sysu sy Buibeuew Ul sAl30eye pue sjenbape m
YNpy Joioaldig 8le pue paljiluspl ussq SABY S|0JJU0D ASY S,801AI8S diysieAleoay
oL 2 Ande( 8y} 1ey} @oueinsse apinoid 01 mainal B aq |lIM SIy pue U0j109104d JO UNCD
"sjuswebuelie
Juswisbeuew pue BuONUOLW JSAO S|0JIUOD
SO0INBS A8 JO MaInB. B 9pN|oul pUB S8jnJ 8inpado.d jeloueuly
BuisnoH $,/19Uno) 8y} Buipn|oul ‘sjusiaiinbal [eo0] pue MBIABI
J010841Q Aoiniels yum jueldwod si WelsAs ay) 1By} 9oUBINSSE uoleluswse|dwi 1sod ~ speibdn
G L Aindeq opiroid 01 meiaas uoljejuswisldwl 1sod B oq |[IM SIYL | SWSISAS jeliey feunwiwo? eubiq
"sjuswiebuelle buipodsl pue maines Buniojuow
‘siepJo Buipue)s j1oe43U0D Bulpnjoul ‘sejni 8inpesoid
[elOUBUL S,[10UNOY 8y} pue sjuswalinbal Alojniels yum
HIiH s921AeS Jueldwod sue swelsAs sy} pue ‘sejeosauwli} Alojniels
BuisnoH pue |eoo] yum soueljdwod (Asuowl Jo} anfeA pue s}soo
J010841Q ‘suonesiueblo [eussixs pue seied pJiy; o} syuswied
/SO0INIBS pue ainjipusdxs ‘sjuswsbuele souBUIBAOD 01 piebs.
Buisnoy yum sysu syl buibeuew ul aAizosye pue sjenbspe
J010841Q aJe pue psijiuspl ussq aAeY S|0JU0D A8y s swiesboud £1/210¢
oL o Aindeq 8} 18y} soueInsse apinoid 01 mainal B aq ||IM SIY L awiweibold SSWOH 1Us0a(]
, ‘Sjuswabuene Buipodal pue mainal
Bunioyuow ‘sieplo Bujpuels 10BIU0D Buipnjoul ‘sejni
aJnpeoo.d |ejouBUY S, |IDUNOD BY} pUe Sjuswialinbal
Aioiniels yum juenduwiod aie swielsAs ayy pue
-suolesiueblo [euse1xs pue saiued pJiyy 01 siuswAed
SELINVEIS pue ainjipusdxs ‘sjuswesbueiie soueuIBA0B 01 pJeba.
BuisnoH YUM sysl sy} Buibeuew ul aA1l0sye pue e1enbape
J010841Q 8Je pue paijiluspl usaq SABY SjOJIUO0D A S 80IAI9S $95S900.d
oL Z Ainde( 8y} 1By}l 8oURINSSE 9pIA0Id 0] MBIASI B 8 |IM SIY | JUBUISSaSSY SSOUSSe[SLOH
sheq | Jepenpd welno 2doog 8AljedIpu| 9|11 upny

:S801AI9S BuisnoH pue ynpy

eL/2102 >@®wﬁh—w pue uejd upny |eusajuj yeiq — >®@C_l=mI JO _(_@30‘_0m Uuopuoj



Page 38

€2 10 07 obed

Sy

[e10] |

ol

S92IAISS
AlunwiwioD R

HNpY 1010941d
AindeQ

‘sjuswiebuee

Buipode. pue meinal Bunojuow pue ‘sejni ainpaooud
[elIOUBULL S,[I0UNOY) 8y} puE sjuswaiinbai Aioiniels
ypm uendwos ale swelsAs sy} pue (ssjeossll]
Aioinyels pue [eoo] yum soueydwod ‘suonesiuebio
[eusslxe pue seiped paiyy o3 sjuswiAed ‘einypuadxs
pue aLwoou| ‘syuswebuelte soueuienob o3 piebs)
yum sysu ey} Buibeuew ul 9Al08ye pue sienbsepe
aJe pue payiuspl usag aAeY S|0sU00 A8y S,801AI8S
a1 1Byl 80UBINSSE apinoid 01 MaIASI B 8] |[IM SIYL

eoIneg Adeisy] reuonednoo

"spuswiebuelre

Buipodal pue meiass Buoyuow pue ‘sejn sunpedoud
[elouBUY S,[IOUNOYD 8yl pUk spuswaJiinbal Aloiniels yum
el dwod ale sweisAs oy} pue ‘ssjeosawl} Aloiniels
pue jeo0] yum eoueldwod ‘suonesiuebio [euisixs

c1/210z ABajeng pue uejd upny [ewsiu yeaq — AsbuueH jo ybnoiog uopuo



Page 39

$¢T 10 g ofeyd

8} pue sjuswalinbai Aioiniels yum jueduiod ae
SwielsAs 8y} pue [1oUNoY 8y} SSOJOE UoljeUsWS|d|
‘Siuswisbue.lie soueusanob pue Aoljod jjeieno 01 piebsi
yum sysu ayy buibeuew ui eaoeye pue sjenbepe

8Je pue paljijusp] Usaq aAeY S|0JU0D Aoy S, 801NIeS

(v Aequg yum

oL zZ HH 10 pesH U} 1By} 80UBINSSE 8pIA0Id 0} MBIABA B 8] [iM SIY] | 8ouBldWoo) AledsoH pue syio
"SJUSLLISSOSSE [BUISIXS WO SUOHEPUSWILLIOOa] AU. O
dn moj|o} B apnjoul OS|e |jIIM MaIAS) 8] ‘Siuewebuele
Buiniodas pue meines Buponuow pue ‘sejni
ainpeooud [e1duBUY S |1OUNOY By} pUe SjusWalINbal
Aoiniels yum jueldwod aJe sweisAs sy) pue
‘sjuswiebuelie souewsAob pue Aojjod |jeleno ‘1ounon
sdiysisuped 8y} ssoJoe Ajinoses [eoiboj pue [eoisAyd :01 piebey
pue Yum sysil ey Buibeuew ul sAjosye pue sjenbspe |
aouabijja1u) 9Je pue payluspl ussq eAeY S|0JU0D AaY S,80I1NI8S sjusWwabueLYy 9oUBUIBAOL)
Gl L Aoljod j0 pesH 9y} Jey) eoueInsse epiAoid 0} mainal B aq |jIm SIy | uoneuLIoul/AlIN0es B1R(
aoejd Ul S|0J1U0D
pue sysu Ay Jo mainal ‘einypuadxe ‘syuswiaiinbal
[e00] pue Aioiniels yum soueldwod ‘(MO
pue) sjuswsbueiie 90UBUISAOD Y] JSAO 8oUBINSSE
apino.d 0} 1s8404 WeylepA Yum sjuswebuese
o z HH 10 pesH S90IAI8S paleys 8y} JO MeInsl B aq |jIM SIY | llolAed — seoInies paJeys
‘upne wsajsAs [eloueuly A8y fenuue ay; poddns
upny jo 1M maiAal Bulobuo siy) “Jesh ey} ssoloe Ajsaijosye
pesH /seoineg | Buijesedo pue eoe|d Ul sJe Sj0J3U0D [BIOURBULY ASY 1RU]
paJeys edueInsse apinoid 01 Wie ||Im smalnad Apspenb ey (loiAed) weisAs ferouruly
10 pesH "e1/210g u uibeq |im |joiAed Joy Buiypne/Bunioyuow A&y syy oy Buipne/Bunioiuow
G -1 /4dH j0 pesH snonuiuoo dojansp 03 swwelboud sy SNONUIUOY Jo juswdolers( |
"S|041U0D _
SETIVETS Jueoyiubis pue Aey yioq Jo Bunsel pue ‘uoleusWINOOP
paJeys Buipnjour pue ‘suoiepuswWWosal upNe shoinaid (upne jenuue)
GL ¥ JO pesH jo dn-mojjo4 Buipnjour ‘ypne weisAs |srs| YbiH wieisAs [eroueuly Aoy — jjoihed
shkeq | ieuenp usiin 2d09S aAREDIpUY| a1 upny

‘juswdojensq pue jeuonesiuebiQ pue ojdoad — BAIINOBXT J8Iyn

€1/2102 Abelens pue ue|d upny [eussiu| yelq — Asbuue jo ybnoiog uopuoT



Page 40

€2 40 2 obed

08

[e1ol

0]

sdiysieuped
pue
aouabi||o1u]
Aoyjod jo pesH

‘sjuswsbuelse

Buipodas pue maira4 Bulojiuow s jlouno)

ay] pue suswalinbas Aloniels yum uelduwiod ale
SWI9IsAs 8yl pUB {1ouno?) 8yl SSoIoe uolieiuss|duws
‘sjusLeBue.LIe 8oUBUISACS pue Adljod |jeieno (0} piebal
UlM Sysu ey BuiBeuew ul 8A0s4e pue ejenbepe

aJe pue paijjuspl ussq aAeY S|0JIU0D A8Y S,80IAI8S

oy} 1ey) eoueInsse apiroid 01 Mainal e ] [|IM SIYL

Ayrenp eieq

Ot

dH j0 pesH

‘syuswisbuese Buipodas pue mainal

funioNuOW pue ‘sejni ainpaooid [eloueUl S [1oUN0Y

ay1 pue sjuswalinbai Aioniels yum jueljduloo aie
SWalsAs ay] pue {IounoD 8y} SSOJoe uoljejusws|dul
‘syuswiaBue.Le 9ouBUIBACB pue Aojjod |[eisno (01 piebal
YIM SYsII eyl BuiBeuew Ul 8A1109)4e pue sjenbepe

ale pue paiiluspl Usag aAey S|0J1U0D A8 S,80IN8S

a1 1eyy eourInsse apinold 01 msinel e 8] [jimM SIYL

A1ajes pue yiesH

Ot

dH j0 peeH

"syuswisbue.e Buipodal pue malnal

furnioluOW pue ‘se|nt aiNpaooud [eloueul S [Iouno)

oY1 pue sjuswalinbai Aioiniels yum jueljduwoo ale
SWeisAs syl pue {Iounoy 8y} SSO.Ioe uolielusus|dul
‘suswiabuesie aoueuIBN0b pue Aojjod |jeieAo 0} piebal
YUM Sysl ey Buibeuew Ut 8ARdaYe pue sienbepe

aJe pue paluspl Usag aney s|0Ju0o AsY S,80IAI8S

8y} 18y} eoueINssE apinoid 01 MelAel B @d ||IM SIYL

s]salelu| Jo uoleie|oad

‘sjuswebuelie buipiodal pue mainal
Bunonuow pue ‘sejni einpaocoid [eloueUl S, [IoUN0D

c1/210zZ ABo1eig pue ueld Hpny jewiu| Yeiq — AebuiieH jo ybnoiog uopuo




Page 41

€2 10 ¢g ofed

9l |e1o
"siopJo Buipuels 10eJju0d
yiesH Buipniour ‘ssini ainpadoud [eloueUl S JIoUNOD 8y
oljgnd Jo108.iqg pue spuswalinbal Alojniels yum jueldwiod st welsAs
Q oqy uelsissy 2y} 1.y} 9oueINSSE apIA0cId 0} MaIASS B 8q [IIM SIY| swiwelboid syoeyn yiesH
‘siepJo Buipuess 10e13U00
yyesH Buipnjour ‘ssjni ainpasoud [eloueul S,)10UNOY) By}
ol|gngd 1010841 pue suswalinbal Asoiniels yum uendwos si welsAs
8 -oq) e1sissy SU1 1ey] souelInsse aplnoid 0} MeiAss B 8] [IIM SIY] | swwWelBoid Uoiessen Bupjows
skeq | Jepenp TTETTT) 2doog aAneoIpUy| 3133 upny
:yyesH onagnd

€1/2102 Abelens pue ue|d upny [eualu] Yelq — AsbuureH jo ybnotog uopuo




Page 42



Page 43 Agenda ltem 7

2

Haringey ounici
Report for- Corporate Committee on | ltem
P ' 20 March 2012 Number:
Title: Pay Policy Statement 2012 — Localism Act 2011

Report . . .
Authorised by: Kevin Crompton, Chief Executive (é, 6’4%,

Lead Officer: Steve Davies, Head of Human Resources, 020 8489 3172

Ward(s) affected: ALL Report for Key/ Non Key Decisions:

Non Key Decision

1 Describe the issue under consideration

1.1 To approve a Pay Policy Statement for the council in line with the requirements of
the Localism Act 2011.

2 Cabinet Member introduction

2.1 Not applicable

3 Recommendations

3.1 That committee approve the Pay Policy Statement attached at appendix A.

4 Requirements of the Localism Act in relation to Pay

4.1 The Localism Act 2011 requires relevant authorities to prepare and publish an
annual pay policy statement.

Page 1 of 21



Page 44

Haringey _ i

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

The “Act” does not apply to the staff of local authority schools and teaching staff
need not be brought within the scope of the “statement”

Accountability

The “Act” requires “statements”, and any amendments to them, are considered by
a meeting of Full Council. Such meetings should be open to the public and should
not exclude observers. This report and the ‘Statement’ at Appendix A will be
taken as a report at Full Council at the end of March.

Guidance issued by the Secretary of State of the Department for Communities and
Local Government (DCLG) states that Full Council should be offered the
opportunity to vote before large salary packages are offered in respect of a new
appointment. [t considers £100,000 is the right level for consideration. The
proposal is therefore to identify those posts on JNC chief officer grades, which are
posts where the starting salary is above £100k. This would cover the following
posts.

Chief Executive

Director of Adult & Housing

Services

Deputy Director Children & Families

Director of Children’s Services

Director of Corporate Resources

Director of Place & Sustainability

Assistant Chief Executive

Chief Executive - Alexandra Palace

To comply with the guidance it is recommended that through this Pay Policy
Statement Full Council be recommended to approve new appointments to one of
the above posts at a starting salary of £100,000 and above or any new post
created which has a starting salary of £100,000 and above if such a post becomes
vacant or is created in the financial year 2012-13.

Transparency

The “Act” requires that authorities include in their “statement”, their approach to
the publication of and access to information relating to the remuneration of chief
officers.

The council will publish specific information on the pay and reward of staff earning
more than £50,000 on its website in line with the Code of Recommended Practice
for Local Authorities on Data Transparency and the Accounts and Audit (England)

Regulations 2011.

Page 2 of 21



Page 45

Haringey _ oo

4.8

4.9

4.10

411

412

413

4.14

5.1

5.2

The council will also publish information on its website as follows. The current
senior manager, chief officer and chief executive management structure including
employee salaries, names, job titles, staff budget and numbers of staff.

Fairness

The “Act” requires authorities to set their policies on remuneration for their highest
paid staff alongside their policies toward their lowest paid employees. In addition,
it requires authorities to explain what they think the relationship should be between
the remuneration of its chief officers and its employees who are not chief officers.

Authorities should also publish a specific pay multiple within their broader policy to
show how pay and reward is dispersed across their workforce. The “Guidance”
recommends the ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid salary and the
median average salary of the Council’s workforce. The Council’s highest paid
employee is the Chief Executive.

The average salary level is defined as the total of all regular payments made to an
individual officer including salary, allowances if applicable, regular overtime,
performance pay, recruitment or retention allowances, additional responsibility
payments, together with any other additional regular payments.

The pay multiple is referred to in the ‘Statement’ and at Appendix C is the
information that will be published on the website about the current pay muitiple.

The “Act” specifies that in addition to senior salaries, authorities must also make
clear what approach they take to the award of other elements of senior
remuneration, including performance related pay as well as severance payments.
This should include any policy to award additional fees for chief officers for their
local election duties. This is outlined in the council’s ‘Statement’ at appendix A.

“Statements” must include an authority’s policy toward the remuneration of its
lowest paid employees. This is outlined in the council’s ‘Statement’ at appendix A.

Comments of Chief Finance Officer and Financial implications

The majority of the contents of the annual Pay Policy Statement are already
compiled and available on the Council’s website so full compliance with the
Localism Act is not expected to lead to additional costs.

Any financial implications arising from Full Council reviewing and recommending

grades of staff appointments over £100k, as set out in paragraph 4.5, will be
addressed at that time.

Page 3 of 21



Page 46

Haringey Couiid

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Comments of Head of Legal Services and legal implications

Chapter 8 of the Localism Act 2011 introduced new provisions regarding the
preparation, approval, publication and content of an annual pay policy statement
by principal councils. The provisions came into force on 15 January 2012.

The Council is under a statutory duty to prepare and by resolution of Full Council,
approve a pay policy statement for the financial year 2012/13 before the end of 31
March 2012 and thereafter on an annual basis. As soon as is reasonably
practicable following approval the statement must be published including
publication on the Council’s website.

The Act provides that the statement must set out the Council’s policies for the
forthcoming financial year relating to the remuneration of its chief officers and its
lowest-paid employees and the relationship between the remuneration of its chief
officers and that of employees who are not chief officers. The statement must
contain the definition of ‘lowest-paid employees’ adopted by the Council along
with the reasons for adopting that definition.

The statement must also contain details of the level and elements of the
remuneration for each chief officer; the remuneration of chief officers on
recruitment; increases and additions to remuneration for each chief officer; the use
of performance-related pay or bonuses for chief officers; the approach to the
payment of chief officers upon ceasing to hold office under or to be employed by
the Council; and the publication of and access to information relating to
remuneration of chief officers. The statement may also set out any policies relating
to other terms and conditions applying to the chief officers.

The Council is under a duty to have regard to any guidance issued or approved by
the Secretary of State and the Code of Recommended Practice for Local
Authorities on Data Transparency (September 2011) is relevant in this respect.
This guidance relates to the publication of Public Data defined as the objective,
factual data on which policy decisions are based and on which public services are
assessed or which is collected or generated in the course of public service
delivery.

Relating the guidance to the pay policy statement, it is stated that as a minimum,
the public data which should be released comprises senior employee salaries (over
£58,200), names (with the option for individuals to refuse to consent to their name
being published), job descriptions, responsibilities, budgets and numbers of staff
together with an organisational chart of the staff structure including salary bands
and details of current vacant posts. There should also be calculated and published

Page 4 of 21



Page 47

Haringey Counci

6.7

6.8

7.1

8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

9.4

9.5

10

10.1

the ‘pay multiple’ being the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median
average salary of the whole of the authority’s workforce.

From 1 April 2012 any determination which relates to the remuneration or other
terms and conditions of a chief officer must comply with the pay policy statement.

In the preparation of the pay policy statement attached at Appendix A, regard has
been taken to the guidance referred to above and the pay policy statement fulfils
all the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

Equalities and Community Cohesion Comments

The pay policy statement supports the council’s approach to remuneration for its
workforce in an accountable, fair and transparent way. This therefore supports the
council’s equalities policy and promotes equal pay.

Policy implications

The Pay Policy Statement supports the council’s People Strategy and its approach
to remuneration for the workforce, and in particular the pay of its senior staff.

Use of Appendices

Appendix A - Pay Policy Statement

Appendix B ~ Sample of website chart showing job title, name, salary, staff
numbers and staff budget.

Appendix C - Pay Multiple information
Appendix D — Chief Officer Appraisal Scheme

Appendix E - Pensions Policy on use of discretions

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

No documents that require listing were used in the preparation of this report.

Page 5 of 21



Page 48

Appendix A - Pay Policy Statement
Haringey Council Pay Policy Statement

This Pay Policy Statement is published to comply with the Localism Act 2011. The policy
outlines the authority’s approach to the pay of it’s workforce, and in particular the pay of
its senior staff. The policy statement excludes staff in Schools.

Pay Strategy

The Council outlines its strategy for pay in the People Strategy. We wish to reward and
recognise the contributions of staff in an appropriate way. We want a committed,
motivated and high performing workforce that is flexible and willing to contribute more.

The council reached an agreement with the unions in 2008 as part of the Equal pay and
conditions package to set pay (and reward packages generally, including pensions, etc) in
accordance with a fair and equitable pay policy and with regard to national and regional
pay policy. The principles for the agreed policy were to have a pay system that would
e Attract and retain the right people
e Provide a system that recognises and rewards, as appropriate, high
performance
o Be cost effective
e Be flexible enough to account for different workforce requirements,
organisational working and team partnership, and the working patterns and
expectations of staff
s Be fair, open, and underpin the organisations values
¢ Meet employment legislation tests e.g. equal pay, age discrimination

More recently, October 2011, the council has also adopted a policy for the London Living
Wage such that it will ensure that in future the pay of council employees at the lower ends
of the London pay spine receive a level of pay in line with the London Living Wage rate as
determined from time to time by the Greater London Authority.

Council Pay Rates / Scales

The Council utilises the Greater London Provincial Council (GLPC) outer London pay
spine for the majority of its staff.

However, it considers it important to be able to locally determine pay rates for some staff
where this is necessary. This enables it to respond to regional and local labour market
conditions. The Council benchmarks its pay rates with other London Boroughs to ensure
that it is able to recruit and retain qualified and competent employees.

The following Council pay scales have been locally agreed by the Council:
e Senior manager and Chief officer pay scales — established in 2003 and last
reviewed and approved by Remuneration Committee in May 2007.

o Chief Executive pay scale - last reviewed and approved by Remuneration
Committee in October 2009 prior to recruiting the current Chief Executive

Page 6 of 21



Page 49

The council uses national Soulbury pay scales for employees who are Education
Psychologists and Education Advisers/ Inspectors.

The council uses national Teaching pay scales for centrally employed (in the Children’s
directorate) local authority teachers.

The council also approved with effect from May 2011 that in future the pay of council
employees at the lower ends of the London pay spine receive a level of pay in line with
the London Living Wage rate as determined from time to time by the Greater London
Authority.

The Council supports the national (JNC/NJC') and regional (GLPC) collective bargaining
arrangements for pay and conditions of service and the pay scales for all employees,
including the Chief Executive and Chief Officers are increased in line with national and
regional pay agreements.

The last pay award agreement increasing pay for the Chief Executive and Chief Officers
was implemented in 2008/9.

The last pay award agreement increasing pay for all other non-teaching employees was
implemented in 2009/10.

Remuneration of Senior Managers and Chief Officers including the Chief Executive

The Council defines its senior managers as those staff appointed on senior manager pay
grades — which start at remuneration levels of approx £50k per annum. These staff are
appointed on terms and conditions in accordance with the national terms and conditions
of chief officers in local government and are expected to work as many hours as
necessary to complete the job.

Chief Officers are statutory chief officers or non statutory chief officers who report to the
Head of the Paid Service (the Chief Executive). It also includes deputy chief officers who
report directly to a chief officer.

The pay grade and therefore remuneration levels for all these staff is determined by use of
the Greater London Council chief officer job evaluation scheme. The council’s Corporate

Committee is responsible of approving the terms and conditions including pay of all these
senior staff.

Where it is proposed to appoint to a post which is not in existence at the time of the
publication of this pay policy statement, and the proposed starting salary is more than
£100,000 per annum the appointment may not be made unless the Council has agreed to
the level of remuneration attaching to the position.

The current senior manager, chief officer and chief executive management structure
including employee salaries costs, names, job titles, staff budget and numbers of staff is
published on the council website.

! Joint Negotiating Committee / National Joint Council

Page 7 of 21



Page 50

Apart from pay awards approved at national level or awards/ progression determined
through the performance related pay scheme (see below) there is no other provision to
increase the pay of these staff unless approved by committee.

The Council may, in exceptional circumstances, employ senior managers under contracts
for services. The Council publishes details of all payments made under contracts for
services in excess of £500 on the council website.

Pay progression and Performance related pay for senior managers and chief officers
The pay progression of staff within a particular senior manager, chief officer or chief
executive grade is subject to a performance appraisal scheme. A copy of this scheme is

provided on the council website.

In summary the criteria for progression is as follows:

Performance Increment Performance Award
Below standard 0 0

Meets objectives 0 0

Exceeds objectives 1 0 (discretion for 2)
Exceptional performance 1 1 (discretion for 2)

Remuneration of employees who are not senior managers or chief officers

The pay grades and therefore remuneration levels for posts below senior manager and
chief officer grades are determined by use of the Greater London Provincial Council
(GLPC) job evaluation scheme. This has been agreed by the council and unions as part
of the collective agreement reached in 2008 on ‘single status’ as part of the Equal pay
and conditions package.

The Council defines its lowest paid employees as those paid at the lowest pay scale 1A
which is pay spine points 6 — 7 on the GLPC outer London pay spine. The reason for this
definition is that this is the lowest pay grade in the council in line with the job evaluation
scheme and pay scales agreed with the unions. This excludes trainees, apprentices and
interns.

However, the council also approved with effect from May 2011 that in future the pay of
council employees at the lower ends of the London pay spine receive a level of pay in line
with the London Living Wage rate as determined from time to time by the Greater London
Authority. This will be by way of an hourly pay supplements as appropriate to ensure that
the London Living Wage rate is achieved.

Pay Progression of staff who are not senior managers or chief officers
All employees are able to incrementally progress through the pay spine column points for

their job evaluated grade. Progression will normally be one increment (pay spine column
point) on the 1% of April each year until they reach the top of their grade.

Page 8 of 21



Page 51

Pay Multiple

The ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average
salary of the Council’s workforce. The Council’s highest paid employee is the Chief
Executive and the current pay multiple is published on the council’s website.

The average salary level is defined as the total of all regular payments made to an
individual officer including salary, allowances if applicable, regular overtime, performance
pay, recruitment or retention allowances, additional responsibility payments, together with
any other additional regular payments.

Pay on Appointment

All employees, including chief officers are normally appointed on the lower spinal points
(below mid point) of the grade.

The Council delegates-authority to chief officers/ chief executive as appropriate to
appoint staff above the permissible pay point.

The starting salary of the Chief Executive will be determined by the Leader of the Council.

Recruitment & Retention payments

Haringey acknowledges that our employees are our best asset and that due to external
factors recruitment and retention allowances will be required for some posts in order to
attract and retain good employees.

Recruitment and retention allowances are linked to the post, not the person. They cannot
be paid to someone because of their level of skill or experience.

A recruitment / retention allowance is deemed suitable where there is evidence of one or
more of the following:

» The post has been advertised on more than one occasion and a suitable applicant
could not be recruited.

» Pay benchmarking exercises show that similar local authorities offer recruitment
and retention allowance or a higher salary for the same work.

» A national /local skills shortage where the council is competing with a number of
other employers for applicants.

» The post is highly specialised with a limited number of potential applicants.

If the post does not meet the suitability criteria the attraction of a recruitment and
retention allowance is unjustified and may be in breach of the Equal Pay Act.

Page 9 of 21



Page 52

Fees for Election Duties

Council staff can be employed on election duties of varying types. The fees paid to
Council employees for undertaking these election duties vary according to the type of
election they participate in, and the nature of the duties they undertake.

Returning Officer duties (and those of the Deputy Returing Officer) are contractual
requirements, and fees paid to them for national elections/referendums are paid in
accordance with the appropriate Statutory Fees and Charges Order and are paid by the
body responsible for the conduct of the election.

Pension

All employees are able to join the Local Government Pension Scheme and receive
benefits in accordance with the provisions of that Scheme as applied by the Council.
Details of the Council’s policy and decisions in respect of discretionary elements of the
Scheme are published on the council’s website.

Other Terms and Conditions of Employment

The Council’s employment policies and procedures are reviewed on a regular basis in the
light of service delivery needs and any changes in legislation etc.

The council and unions agreement on ‘single status’ reached in 2008 as part of the
collective agreement on Equal pay and conditions outlines the working arrangements and
the payments to be made to employees below senior manager grades for working outside
normal working hours including overtime, and call out payments.

Employees on senior manager or chief officer grades are not entitled to additional
payments or allowances for travel or meals within the London region. For trips outside of
the London region reasonable travel and subsistence expenses will be reimbursed for
staff on these grades.

Payments on Termination of Employment

In the event that the Council terminates the employment of an employee (including senior
managers and chief officers) on the grounds of redundancy or efficiency of the service
they will be entitled to receive compensation and benefits in accordance with the
Council’s Redundancy and Early Retirement schemes, which are published on the
council’s website.

Details of redundancy compensation payments paid to senior management are published
on the council’s website.

The Council’s Redundancy and Early Retirement schemes may be subject to change as
part of the modernising pay review.

Page 10 of 21



Page 53

Re-employment of Employees

Section 7 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires that every
appointment to paid office or employment in a local authority shall be made on merit.

Further Information

For further information on the Council’s pay policy please contact the Council’s Human
Resources Service email HR.adviceteam@haringey.gov.uk DD 0208 489 3177.

Page 11 of 21



Page 54

L2 Jo g} ebed

~ N N N ™

St A , 9L 344 15 Al

8t JUnoopesH et 314 ¥8 JUNOopESH 09 JunoopesH
£9¥'269  (3)1s003s0d (€10 > . unoopesH vigeli's  (3)1sooisod g1o) 0/£°680'c  {3) 1809 3150d |BIOL
g} :suonisod [ejo] - \y6'0gs  (3) 31800 1s0d |ejo]. 68 :suolpsod [e10] €9 :suonisod (810
9e1'0L  xew Akefes i1sod Sk :suopsod [ejo ] 0508 Xew AfB[eS 1504 05078 Xew Alees 1sod

9€1'0L xew Asejes 1504
SOOINISS JaquUIoN /a_cﬂm:tmm » aouabijjau)

/ 3 Aoeioowa( (807 \ // ao 1o pesy a1es0dion \ ﬁmoh:owmm uBLUNY JO vmmﬁ AoKod 10 peoay \
l |

D

86y BREIE
iy JUNOJPEBSH
002'/9g's (3) 1500 3150d [BIOL
00°£8S :suoisod e1o0)
81280} AeleS 1504

8AIN08X]

/ 191YD JUBISISSY \
40IAH3S S AAILLNDIXd 4dIHD

"196pnq Jels pue siequinu Jels 1soo Alejes ‘aweu ‘o1 qof Buimoys peyo aysgem jo sjdwes — g xjpusddy




Page 55

Appendix C - Pay Multiple information

The ‘pay multiple’ is the ratio between the highest paid salary and the median average
salary of the Council’s workforce. The Council’s highest paid employee is the Chief
EXxecutive and the current pay multiple is published on the council’s website.

The average salary level is defined as the total of all regular payments made to an
individual officer including salary, allowances if applicable, regular overtime,
performance pay, recruitment or retention allowances, additional responsibility
payments, together with any other additional regular payments

The council’s pay multiple - the ratio between the highest paid employee and the
median average salary figure for all employees in the council - is 1 to 6.8. The
council’s highest paid employee is the Chief Executive on a salary of £189,440 per
annum.  The median earnings figure is for all employees is £28,032, which is
equivalent to SO1 grade spinal point 31 salary level.

Page 13 of 21



Page 56

Appendix D - Chief Officer Appraisal Scheme
Performance Management Scheme for Chief Officers

Scope

This scheme is intended to apply to all posts governed by the JNC for Chief Officers
terms and conditions. The scheme may be applied to other posts with the express prior
approval of the Chief Executive.

Purpose

The scheme exists to enable the measurement and recognition of individual and team
performance. The scheme is intended to provide guidance about poor performance but
is not a replacement for the Council’s arrangements for managing poor performance or
conduct. The scheme is not intended to form a part of the contract of employment.
Instead it provides management guidance about the operation of contractual pay and
related performance actions. ’

Operation

The scheme is intended to be used throughout the working year and to provide
guidance as to an officer's performance management. It is not intended that the
scheme provides prescriptive regulation and deviations from the letter or spirit of the
guidance are permissible. Such actions should be discussed and noted by the parties
involved. No party to the scheme should become involved in performance
management or measurement until they have received training and instruction in the
operation of the scheme.

Relationship with other Council procedures.

The scheme relates with the Council’s arrangements for chief officer pay, capability
and conduct. Nothing in this scheme shall be taken to alter those procedures unless it
is explicitly provided within the scheme and accepted by the officer as a replacement
for current practice. Decisions taken within the scheme may be discussed and
challenged only within the terms provided by the scheme itself. No recourse to the
Council’s grievance procedure is recognised for decisions taken using the scheme.

Monitoring & Review

The scheme shall be monitored each year to ensure that it delivers an effective
framework for performance management. The Chief Executive shall undertake
revisions to the scheme and issue amendments as required.

Local Government Act 2000

Actions taken under this scheme for chief officers are the responsibility of the chief
Executive. He may consult with elected members at his discretion. A politically
balanced non-Executive Member panel shall undertake the appraisal of the Chief
Executive.

Service monitoring & process
A process chart for the scheme is described below.

Page 14 of 21



Chief officer
Chief executive
Executive member

v

Chief officer
Chief executive
Executive member

v

Chief officer
Chief executive

Chief officer

Chief executive
Executive member
Leader/other
members

VAR

Chief officer
Chief executive

Chief officer
Chief executive
Executive member

Chief officer
Chief executive
Executive Member

vovov

Page 57

Business plan
developed

-~

Chief officer
objectives set

v

First appraisal
meeting

-

Regular service
review meetings

—1}—

Mid-year appraisal
review

?;_

Service review
meetings

End of year
appraisal review

—1}_

e

usiness plan
developed

Page 15 of 21

UD February

U

”U Feb/March

”U April

40

HD May/Sept

UU Sept/Oct

[H:] Oct/March

448

HU April

E




Page 58

Setting Performance Objectives

Obijectives should be derived from the business plan objectives discussed and agreed
with Members. Members play a key role in the determination of chief officer objectives
even where posts may report through other officers. The balance of responsibility is
vital to a successful performance management and measurement system. Employees
of the Council are managed by other officers or the Chief Executive. They work to an
agenda determined by Members. It follows that a process for objective setting in the
chief officer appraisal cycle should include members. Monitoring of service
development and delivery should also be the subject of member attention throughout
the year. Day-to-day management should remain the responsibility of the Head of Paid
Service.

Objectives

Typically performance objectives should reflect the business objectives and corporate
initiatives of the appraisee. The scheme asks that tasks are identified for each
business objective. Whilst the business objective may be broad, tasks should enable
the employee and appraiser to be clear about what is required, when it is to be
completed, the standard required expressed as either output or outcome. The scheme
also provides an opportunity to state perfformance measures/outputs for each task,
thus:

Example Service objective 1: To improve staff retention in key posts
Key Tasks:

a) Establish effective workforce data including turnover by dd/mm/2003

b) Develop a framework of retention measures for agreement by The Executive by
dd/mm/2003

¢) Engage with key stakeholders to understand and plan employment cultures that
encourage staff retention

d) efc

Example Performance Measure/Output:

a) New data system reporting retention issues to Management Board by
dd/mm/2003, to include exit interviews.

b) Framework researched, agreed with stakeholders, and ready for implementation
by dd/mm/2003.

c) Partnership for an established for key posts with employers, unions, members,
and associations by dd/mm/2003. Employment cultures assessed for high and
low turnover occupations.

d) efc

Page 16 of 21



Page 59

Checking Your Objectives

After you have written your objectives, check them against the questions in the
following list:

1. Are the objectives realistic? Objectives should be attainable and
consistent with what is necessary to get the job done. Objectives for
performance which meets expectations represent the minimum
acceptable level of performance for all employees in that position.

2. Are the tasks specific? Tasks should tell an employee exactly which
specific actions and results he or she is expected to accomplish.

3. Are the objectives based on measurable data, observation, or
verifiable information? Performance can be measured in terms of
timeliness, cost, quality and quantity, output or outcome.

4. Are the objectives consistent with Council goals? Objectives link
individual (and team) performance to Council goals and should be
consistent with these goals.

5. Are the objectives challenging? Objectives may describe performance
that exceeds expectations. Recognising performance that is above
expectations or outstanding is crucial to motivating employees.

6. Are the objectives clear and understandable? The employees whose
work is to be evaluated on the basis of the objectives should understand
them. Objectives should use the language of the job.

7. Are the objectives dynamic? As Council goals, technologies,
operations or experiences change, objectives should evolve.

Competency Framework

A competency framework applies to performance appraisal across the Council. The
framework enables job related and personal qualities to be measured and developed.
The scheme requires that at least four competencies are included in the appraisal. A
summary of the framework is attached at appendix 1. The full version is available on
Harinet, in the Personnel Manual, or from the Head of Personnel.

Monitoring and reviewing objectives

The achievement of service and corporate performance objectives is likely to result
from a series of contributing factors, some of which will be in the control of the
appraisee, others of which will not. In monitoring performance against objectives it is
important to identify that which is to be directly controlled and that over which the
appraisee is expected to exert influence. For example if an objective was to reduce
Council sickness absence by 2%, then an officer may control the policy framework,
council health promotion initiatives, absence reduction activities, etc. Influence is
applied through these means and the employment culture generated in respect of any
individual employee choice about whether to attend for work.

Members will be involved in the monitoring of service performance throughout the

year. It is important that these occasions are used to maximum advantage. Both
positive and partial performance needs to be assessed within the context of control

Page 17 of 21



Page 60

and influence factors. It is suggested that both the objective and the associated tasks
therefore form a part of the assessment.

The Council has worked to generate an environment where managers are empowered
to take decisions, learn from mistakes and improve services. Such a culture accepts
that improved performance is unlikely to be realised as a steady rise in all aspects of
service delivery. Instead change models involving risk, error, learning and
development are likely. Your role in the setting, monitoring and assessment of service
objectives should be cognisant of this model:

Change
risk

uccess, error

The purpose of the Council’s performance appraisal scheme remains the improvement
of individual and corporate performance against service objectives. Matters of conduct,
capability, etc are governed by separate arrangements. ’

The chief officer scheme develops the version used by the Council by recognising
contribution to corporate initiatives. It is likely that you will be monitoring the
contribution of teams against corporate targets. Group appraisal requires that you are
able to identify individual contribution within a team setting. When the work of teams is
appraised, typically the effectiveness of work processes and their results are appraised
as well as the ability of the team to work effectively together. These dimensions may
be described as the work of teams and teamwork, and they may be appraised on an
individual basis, on a team basis or both. Thus you may be involved in discussions
about individual contribution to outcome and methodology/role.

Sources of Performance Data

The appraisal scheme provides for self-assessment as a part of the process.
Appraisees are expected to collect evidence in support of the objectives. Appraisers
are free to ask for data to be made available for the purpose of appraisal. As a general
rule appraisers should avoid reliance on hearsay and anecdotal evidence. Instead
issues relating to performance once raised should be discussed and based on
objective, job related, and evidenced data.

Page 18 of 21



Page 61

A mixture of quantitative and qualitative evidence is preferred. The appraisal
documentation includes provision to record performance indicators whether national or
local. Corporate and individual indicators of success are also to be included.

Corporate & Service Performance

The Scheme requires measurement of performance against both Service and
Corporate objectives. The scheme recognises that all chief officers are required to
provide support on Council-wide improvement. The scheme also recognises that
individual contribution to corporate working should be identified and measured as a
part of the general assessment of performance. The documentation asks that both
Service and corporate objectives are identified. The assessment of objectives is based
on performance measures set for each, and with reference to the Key Performance
Indicators for that area. It follows that each Chief Officer will in part be assessed by the
performance of the Council as a whole.The relationship between Service and
Corporate performance shall be balanced as in the Scheme at 5 service objectives to 3
corporate targets.

Performance & Pay

Improved performance is motivated by many factors. Measurement and feedback
about performance is a key motivator; so too is peer recognition and support for
development. Pay may be used to supplement such primary factors but is not intended
as the Council’s sole motivation method for improving service performance. Nor is it
the intention of this scheme that pay is the central theme. The use of pay therefore is
as a reward for improvements and as one form of recognition.

The Council recognises that exceptional performance warrants recognition in its
remuneration of senior staff. The Council will take account of performance as a whole
rather than being led by any single process or indicator. Performance appraisal
therefore plays but one part of the overall pay assessment of senior staff. Such
assessment will take account of an employee’s contribution to the Council's corporate
performance, the improvements realised in employees’ service areas, and individual
contribution. Measurement of performance will include performance indicators, the
appraisal, and contribution to corporate improvement. Such assessment must account
for both individual and team contributions by the appraisee.

The Scheme promotes the use of increments to reward performance. Increments may
be awarded on a consolidated or non-consolidated basis. The scheme recognises the
relationship between pay and performance as follows: :

- Employees who demonstrate a level of performance below satisfactory shall not be
awarded an increment.

- Employees who demonstrate satisfactory and expected performance may be
awarded one increment as a consolidated pay progression.

- Employees who demonstrate lasting service improvements and performance
beyond expectation may be awarded one consolidated increment and a
performance award equivalent to a maximum of two increments paid on non
consolidated basis.

- Employees who demonstrate exceptional performance achieving permanent step
changes in service delivery may be awarded two consolidated increments and a
performance award equivalent to up to two increments paid on non consolidated

Page 19 of 21



Page 62

basis. It is anticipated that such awards will not be frequent and may be in
recognition of achievements made of several years.

The above system shall apply up to the maximum of the 8-point grade. Thereafter,
three non-consolidated performance award points shall be available to recognise
officer contribution. The categories above shall be used to determine the number of
performance awards. The system may be also expressed as a table:

Performance Increment Performance Award
Below standard 0 0

Meets objectives 0 0

Exceeds objectives 1 0 (discretion for 2)
Exceptional 1 1 (discretion for 2 )
performance

Documentation
The scheme provides standard forms for recording objectives, and measuring
performance.

Poor Performance

The scheme provides a basis for improvement, and development. A part of the
process requires that appraisees identify areas for improvement. The primary aim of
the scheme is to support improved performance by a variety of developmental
activities. In some cases, opportunities for improved performance will be less apparent.
Regular monitoring and discussion about service and individual objectives throughout
the year will ensure that such occurrences are not a surprise for any of the involved
parties. Recourse to disciplinary or capability actions may be required in extreme
circumstances and should be governed by those separate procedures.

Remuneration Panel

Decisions about appraisal performance and recommendations for improvement are the
responsibility of the appraisee’s manager. Recommendations for pay awards relating
to performance shall be developed by the appraiser. The Chief Executive shall receive
and consider all performance pay proposals. He will put forward to the Remuneration
Panel his decisions on performance pay awards that take account of performance as a
whole both across the Council, and of the service Directorate. The role of the
Remuneration Panel is to audit the process of awards and challenge any that the
Panel believes are not in keeping with the process. The Remuneration Panel will not
receive appraisal notes, but will be provided with a briefing about service performance
for any area in debate. The Executive Member for a service shall be asked to attend
the Remuneration Panel if such a debate is required.

Confidentiality

The detail of individual appraisals remains confidential between the appraisee and
appraiser(s). Neither the Remuneration Panel nor the Council as a whole will receive
details of individual performance. Instead a summary of overall service achievement
against targets shall be made available, using a standard format. The terms of
reference for the Remuneration Panel require that sensitive pay and performance
matters are managed with the utmost confidentiality. Discussions at the Panel are held
in closed session with the press and public excluded under the Local Government Act.
Members of the Panel agree that the detail of discussion shall remain confidential to

Page 20 of 21



Page 63

them and communication with the Council, its employees and agents shall be agreed
by the Panel prior to the release of any information.

Competency and Development

Follow the Council’'s competency framework to assess the behavioural aspects of
management performance. And set short term and longer term development activities
following the council’s standard appraisal framework for all staff.

Page 21 of 21



Page 64



Page 65

POLICY STATEMENT ON THE USE OF ITS DISCRETIONARY POWERS:
Summary Document

This is a summary policy statement on the Council’s use of its discretionary powers
under the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations and Local Government
Pension Scheme Compensation Regulations.

The full version can be seen on the Harinet Pensions Page (click Personnel and follow
the links) and the Haringey Pensions Web Page (www.haringey.gov.uk/pensionfund.)

The current policy was reviewed and updated by General Purposes Committee on 10"
March 2009.

This policy statement only applies to scheme members employed by Haringey
Council. Scheme members not employed by the Council must refer to the Policy
Statement issued by their employing body.

Councillor Members should refer to Part 2

Part 1.A Pensions Discretions

Employee Members

1. hoice of earl ment of pension (Requlation 30)!

This applies to members who cease employment after age 552 and before age 60 who
elect for early payment of their retirement benefits.

The Council’s policy is to allow early payment of benefits as provided by Regulation 30
where there is a clear financial or operational advantage to the Council in doing so.

The Council will consider waiving any actuarial reduction on ‘compassionate grounds’
as defined in Paragraph 5 of the Policy Statement below.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the Chief
Financial Officer acting under delegated powers.

Any Capital Cost arising will be met from Service / Business Unit budgets and will be
paid into the Fund within a three month period.

First and second tier Officers will require Member approval.

2. | Early Retirement on Redundancy and Business Efficiency (Reg 19)

Members age 55° and over who are retired on redundancy or efficiency grounds have
entitlement to immediate payment of unreduced benefits.

Any Capital Cost arising from an early retirement on redundancy or business efficiency
will be met from Service/Business Unit budgets and must be paid into the Fund within
a three month period.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the Chjef
Financial Officer acting under delegated powers.

First and second tier Officers will require Member approval

3. | Early payment of Deferred Benefits (Requlation 30)

A member who left with entitlement to Deferred Benefits can elect from age 55 to have
the benefits put into payment early. An election made before age 60 requires employer

' All regulations quoted are from the Local Government Pension Scheme {(Membership Contributions and Benefits)
Regulations 2007 as amended.

* A member in the scheme at 31° March 2008 retains the right to immediate payment of benefits having attained age 50
provided they are retired on redundancy or business efficiency before 1% April 2010

* A member in the scheme at 31% March 2008 retains the right to immediate payment of benefits having attained age 50
provided they are retired on redundancy or business efficiency before 1 April 2010




Page 66

consent.

Benefits claimed before age 65 may be subject to an actuarial reduction unless the
Council agrees to waive the reduction on compassionate grounds (see para 5 below)

The Council’s policy is to allow early payment of Deferred Benefits only if the case can
be considered on ‘Compassionate Grounds’ as defined in paragraph 5 below or
otherwise where there is no financial disadvantage to the Council for doing so.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the Chief
Financial Officer acting under delegated powers.

4. | Flexible retirement (Reguiation 18)

The Council will consider applications for Flexible Retirement from scheme members
age 55 and over.

As a minimum requirement, a member’s pay must reduce by at least four spinal points
or the equivalent in reduced hours

Both the transfer to a lower graded post or reduction in hours of work and the early
release of retirement benefits is an employer discretion

In considering Flexible Retirement both the needs of the member and the Service must
be taken into account. Initial approval rests with the Service Chief Officer e.g. Assistant
Director or equivalent with final approval by the y Head of Human Resources.

The early release of benefits before age 65 has the potential to incur an actuarial
reduction in benefits. The Chief Financial Officer has delegated authority to waive any
actuarial reduction, but only in exceptional circumstances that benefit the business and
operational needs of the service. The cost to the Fund will be met from the Service
budget.

Acceptance of Flexible Retirement debars the member from changing their job to a
post offering higher pay or increasing their hours within the Council or from returning to
employment on higher pay with the Council for a period of not less then three years.

The full Flexible Retirement Policy, Procedure and Documentation is available on
Harinet (click Personnel and follow the links)

5. | Discretion to waive an actuarial reduction under Requlation 30

Although the term compassionate grounds is not defined in the regulations, the
Council’s policy is to apply the following definition:-

‘Compassionate Grounds means that the scheme member is required to look after a
sick dependant relative on a whole time basis, is therefore unable to take up gainful
employment, and in consequence is suffering financial hardship.’

In addition, the Council will satisfy itself that the sick dependant relative has a
permanent long-term condition with a reasonable life expectancy having regard to
his/her age.

Each case will be considered on its merits and will be subject to approval by the Chief
Financial Officer acting under delegated powers

6. | Awards of Added Membership Reg. 12

The Council’s policy is not to award additional membership

7. | Awards of Additional Pension Reg.13

* Deferred Member benefits which began before 12 April 2006 can be claimed from age 50. Deferred Member
benefits for a member which began after 1% April 2006 can be claimed from age 50, provided the election is made
before 1* October 2010




Page 67

The Council’s policy is not to award additional pension

ment of D rants for Active Members R lation 23, Deferred Member
Reg.32 and Pensioner Members Requlation 35,

A death grant will usually be paid in accordance with the member's nomination or,
where there is no nomination, to the legal personal representatives. However where it
is considered that:

a) an existing nomination may no longer reflect the member's intentions (for example
there is a subsequent marriage, divorce or children) or,

b) there is a deserving recipient (who must be have been his relative or dependant at
some time) who would otherwise be excluded by payment to the Estate or,

c) payment to the Estate may be inappropriate for other reasons (for example where
inheritance tax may be a factor if payment were made to the Estate).

Payment may be made in the manner and proportions the Council believe appropriate
in the circumstances of the case.

In all cases, the release of the Death Grant is delegated for approval to the Chief
Financial Officer. :

Disregarding a break in full-time education for a Childs Pension to continue in
payment.

a. Where there is a break in full-time education or training, the Chief Financial Officer
will decide whether such a break can be ignored on the child’s return to full-time
education or training

b.The Chief Financial Officer will have regard to the circumstances of each case
within the guideline that the break should not generally extend beyond 12 months
from the beginning of one academic year to the end of one academic year, or
include periods of full-time employment of more then three months

¢. Where the gap extends beyond the 12 month limit as described above, the child
must be able to clearly demonstrate a clear intention to return to full-time
education or training and has not undertaken paid employment as an alternative
career option to returning to fill-time education or training

d. Where the Chief Financial Officer deems it appropriate to ignore a break in full-
time education or training, the child’s pension will be reinstated from the re-
commencement of full-time education or training or such earlier date as the Chief
Financial Officer deems appropriate based on the individual circumstance of the
case.

e. The exercise of this discretion will be reported to the Pensions Committee.

10.

Abatement (reduction) of pensions on re-employment

Members of the Fund who commence re-employment or who return to Office after 31%
March 1998 will be liable for an abatement in their pension in the circumstances
described below.

The abatement will be calculated in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5 to
the Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 1995,

Pensioner members who commence re-employment or return to Office in local
government following retirement on medical grounds. or

re-employment or return to Office with Haringey Council or its employing bodies in
circumstances where the member has retired early with no percentage reduction to the
retirement benefits will be subject to an abatement except in cases of Flexible
Retirement agreed in accordance with Regulation 18.




Page 68

11.| Waiving of time limits
The Council’s policy is to waive time limits set within the Pension Scheme Regulations
where it is satisfied that the individual could not have known of the requirement to
make an election at the proper time.

12. I earance 919 =
(Administration Regulations)
An application to purchase additional pension will only be accepted if the member
makes a declaration that he/she is in reasonably good health and has not been seen by
a medical practitioner within the last 12 months or otherwise where the member
provides a report by a registered medical practitioner of the results of a medical
examination undertaken at the member's own expense

13.| Attributing salary bands
Salary bands are attributed on 1% April based on basic annual pensionable pay plus
variable pensionable pay over the last twelve months.
New starters to be attributed a salary band on the first day of membership based on
basic annual pensionable pay.
That with the exception of back-dated pay awards to 1% April, no variation will be made
to a member’s attributed salary band other then at each annual review date on 1% April
of each subsequent year.
To ensure the smooth implementation of this change any variation to this policy is
delegated to the Head of Human Resources subject to approval at the next available
meeting of General Purposes Committee

14.| Shared Cost Additional Voluntary Contribution Scheme

The Council’s policy is not to provide a Shared Cost AVC scheme

Part 1.B Compensation Discretions

Discretions exercised by Haringey Council in accordance with provisions of

The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation)
(England and Wales) Regulations 2006 (as amended) and the Local Government
(Discretionary Payments) Regulations 1996 as amended

1. | Compensation for Redundancy
Compensation on redundancy will be based on ; 1 weeks pay for each complete year
of service up to a maximum of 20 years total service.

2. | Rate of Pay for Redundancy Purposes

The redundancy payment is based on the actual weekly rate of pay at the relevant
date. (This is usually but not always, the date notice is given).

Injury Allowances

3.

An Injury allowance may be paid to an employee who sustains an injury or contracts a
disease as a result of anything he/she was required to do in carrying out their work;
and either:-

Is certified as being permanently incapacitated and ceases employment. or
Suffers a reduction in pay.

In deciding on the amount of Injury Allowance payable, the Council takes into account




Page 69

all the circumstances of the case.
The maximum amount payable is 85% of Final Pay.
Injury Allowances in payment are reviewed annually, and at age 65.

Each case is referred for a decision to the Section 151 Officer acting under delegated
authority.

Gratuity Payments

Gratuities for Non- Pensionable Service: Summary of current Policy:

Gratuities are paid to retiring employees for service with the Council during which they
were not eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.

Part Time employees who worked at least 15 hours per week for 35 weeks a year can
count service up to 31/3/1987 for gratuity entitlement.

Part Time employees who worked less 15 hours per week can count service up to
16/8/1993.

Gratuity payments do not apply to casual employment

The payments are calculated on 3.75% of Annual Pay for each year of gratuity service
as described above.

The employee can choose between a once off lump sum or an annuity payment.
A Death Gratuity is also paid if an employee dies in Service.

The Death Gratuity is paid to an employee's dependants. It is calculated on 3.75% of
Annual Pay for all local government service up to 31/3/1987. It is payable to members
of the Local Government Pension Scheme and non-scheme members alike.

Part 2.A

Councillor Members:

1. | Voluntary Early Retirement Gratuities for Non- Pensionable Service: Summary of
current Policy:
Gratuities are paid to retiring employees for service with the Council during which they
were not eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme.
Part Time employees who worked at least 15 hours per week for 35 weeks a year can
count service up to 31/3/1987 for gratuity entitlement.
Part Time employees who worked less 15 hours per week can count service up to
16/8/1993.
Gratuity payments do not apply to casual employment
The payments are calculated on 3.75% of Annual Pay for each year of gratuity service
as described above.
The employee can choose between a once off lump sum or an annuity payment.
A Death Gratuity is also paid if an employee dies in Service.
The Death Gratuity is paid to an employee's dependants. It is calculated on 3.75% of
Annual Pay for all local government service up to 31/3/1987. It is payable to members
of the Local Government Pension Scheme and non-scheme members alike.

2. | Voluntary early retirement from age 55

The Council will not exercise its discretion to release retirement benefits early to
councillor members who cease or have ceased to be a member of the Council age 50
and under 65




Page 70

The Couhcil will not exercise its discretion to waive the actuarial reduction for
councillor members who cease to be a member of the Council and claim immediate
payment of benefits

3. | Re-employed pensioners — Abatement of pensions (Regulation 109)

The Council’s policy is not to abate a pension in all cases except :-

re-employment or return to Office in local government following retirement on
medical grounds. or

re-employment or return to Office with Haringey Council or its employing bodies in
circumstances where the member has retired early with no percentage reduction to
the retirement benefits

5. | 4. Waiving of time limits

That the time limits set within the Pension Scheme Regulations will be waived where
the member could not have known of the requirement to make an election at the
proper time.

6. | Waiving restriction on entry to the Fund Regulation 7 (9)

The Council’s policy is not to restrict re-entry to the Fund where a member has
previously elected to opt out more then once

7.

Important Note:

Nothing stated above confers any statutory rights or overrides the provisions of the
Local Government Pension Scheme and Compensation Regulations® or related
legisiation.

In the event of any dispute over your pension benefits, the appropriate legislation
will prevail

For more information contact the Pensions Team at:-
Alexandra House 10 Station Road London N22 7TR

Tel Number 020 8489 5916

E-Mail Pensions.Mailbox@haringey.gov.uk

* The main scheme regulations referred to are :-

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Benefits, Membership and Contributions) Regulations 2007 (as
amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Administration)) Regulations 2008 (as amended)

The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions) Reguiations 2008 (as amended)

The Local Government (Early Termination of Employment) (Discretionary Compensation) (England and
Wales) ) Regulations 2006 (as amended).



Page 71 Agenda ltem 9

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is exempt



Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	5 Work Place Learning /Experience Policy
	6 The Annual Internal Audit Plan and Internal Audit Strategy
	7 Pay Policy statement
	9 Performance Appraisal Scheme for Chief Officers and Senior Managers

